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NO TICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 20th Annual Ceneral Meeting 
of the Company w ill be held at Pleasant Days Resort, Chennai- 
Bangalore Trunk Road, Palanjur, Sembarambakkam, Chennai 
602103 on 10th August, 2012 at 4 P.M. to  transact the 
fo llow ing  business:-

Ordinary Business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Balance Sheet as at 
31 st March, 2012 and the Profit and Loss Account for the 
year ended on that date and the Reports o f the Directors 
and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint D irector in p laceo f M r Arun Bhalla, w ho retires 
by  ro ta t io n ,  b e in g  e l ig ib le  o ffe rs  h im s e lf  fo r  
re-appointment.

3. To re-appoint M/s B S R and Co, Chartered Accountants, 
as Auditors o f the com pany and to authorize the Board of 
Directors to  fix  the ir remuneration.

Special Business:

4. To consider and if thought fit, to pass w ith  or w ithou t 
m odification(s), the fo llow ing  resolution as an O rd inary 
Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT Mr. Luis Carlos Silveyra, w ho  was 
appointed as an A dd itiona l D irector on Novem ber 11,

2011 on the Board of the Com pany in terms o f Section 
260 o f the Companies Act, 1956 and A rtic le  89 o f A rtic le  
o f Association o f the Com pany and w ho holds office up 
to the date o f this Annual Ceneral M eeting, and in respect 
of w hom  a notice has been received from  a M em ber in 
w riting , under Section 257 o f the Companies Act, 1956, 
proposing his candidature for the office o f a Director, be 
and is hereby appointed as a d irector o f the company, 
whose period o f office  w ill not be subjected to retirement 
by ro tation."

5. To consider and if  thought fit, to  pass w ith  o r w ithou t 
m odification(s), the fo llow ing  resolution as an O rd inary 
Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT Mr. Banm ali Agraw a la, w h o  was 
appointed as an A dd itiona l D irector on M ay 14, 2012 on 
the Board o f the Com pany in terms o f Section 260 o f the 
C om panies A c t, 1956 and A r t ic le  89 o f A r t ic le  o f 
Association o f the Com pany and w ho  holds office up to 
the date o f this Annual Ceneral Meeting, and in respect 
o f w hom  a notice has been received from  a M ember in 
w riting , under Section 257 o f the Companies Act, 1956, 
proposing his candidature for the office o f a Director, be 
and is hereby appointed as a director o f the com pany"

By Order of the Board

Place: Chennai 
Date : M ay 14, 2012

N. Nambi Rajan
Financial C ontro ller and 

Company Secretary

NOTES:

1. A m em ber entitled  to attend and vote at the M eeting is 
entitled to appo in t a proxy to attend and vote in his/her 
stead and the p ro xy  need n o t be a m em ber o f the 
Company. Proxies in order to be effective must be received 
at the Company's Registered O ffice  not less than 48 hours 
before the com m encem ent o f the Meeting.

2. An Explanatory Statement pursuant to  Section 173 o f the 
Companies Act, 1956, relating to Special Business to be 
transacted at the meeting, is annexed hereto.

3. The Register o f members o f the Com pany w ill remain 
dosed from  7th August 2012 to 10th August 2012, both 
days inclusive.

4. The members ho ld ing shares in the dem aterialized mode 
are requested to intim ate all changes w ith  respect to their 
address, bank details, mandate, nom ination , power of 
attorney, etc. to the ir depository partic ipant (DP). These 
changes w ill be autom atica lly reflected in the Company's 
records, w h ich  w ill help the Company to provide efficient 
and better service to members.

5. REQUEST TO SHAREHOLDERS
i) Shareholders are advised to bring the ir copy of the 

Annual Report as copies o f the Annual Report w ill not 
be distributed at the venue o f the Annual Ceneral 
Meeting.

ii) Shareholders may k ind ly  note that no gift/coupon w ill 
be d istributed at the Annual Ceneral Meeting.



ANNEXURE T O  N O TIC E
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 173(2) OF THF COMPANIFS ACT, 1956

ITEM NO. 4
M r Luis Carlos Silveyra, was appo inted as an A dd itiona l 
D irector by the Board o f D irector in the Board meeting held 
on 11th Novem ber 2011 in accordance w ith  the provisions 
o f Section 260 o f the Companies Act, 1956 and A rtic le  89 o f 
A rtic le  o f Association o f the Company.

Pursuant to Section 260 o f the Companies Act, 1956 he holds 
office up to the date o fth e  ensuing Annual General Meeting. 
In this regard the Com pany has received request in w riting  
from  a member o f the com pany proposing his candidature 
fo r appointm ent as D irector o f the Com pany in accordance 
w ith  the provisions o f Section 257 and all other applicable 
provisions o fth e  Companies Act, 1956.

The Board feels that presence o f M r Luis Carlos Silveyra on 
the Board is desirable and w ou ld  be beneficial to the company 
and hence recommend resolution for adoption.

M r Luis Carlos Silveyra w ill not be subjected to retirem ent by 
rotation.

None o f the Directors, except Mr. Luis Carlos Silveyra is 
concerned o r interested in this resolution.

ITEM NO. 5

M r B anm ali Agraw ala, was appo in ted  as an A d d itio n a l 
D irector by the Board o f D irector in the Board meeting held

on 14th M ay 2012 in accordance w ith  the provisions o f 
Section 260 o f the Companies Act, 1956 and A rtic le  89 of 
A rtic le  o f Association o f the Company.

Pursuant to Section 260 o fthe  Companies Act, 1956 he holds 
o ffice up to  the date o f the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 
In this regard the Company has received request in w riting  
from  a m ember o f the com pany proposing his candidature 
fo r appointm ent as D irector o f the Com pany in accordance 
w ith  the provisions o f Section 257 and all other applicab le 
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956.

The Board feels that presence o f M r Banmali Agrawala on the 
Board is desirable and w ou ld  be beneficial to the com pany 
and hence recommend resolution for adoption.

None o f the D irectors, except Mr. Banm ali A graw ala is 
concerned or interested in this resolution.

By O rder o f the Board

Place : Chennai 
Date ; M ay 14, 2012

N. Nambi Rajan
Financial C ontro lle r and 

Com pany Secretary

Profile of Directors being appointed /  re-appointed as required under Clause 49 of the Listing 
Agreement entered into with the Stock Exchanges

Particulars M r Luis Carlos Silveyra M r Arun Bhalla M r Banmali Agrawala

Date o f Birth 16th Sep 1948 23rd M ay 1951 30th A pril 1963

Date o f A ppointm ent 11th Nov 2011 22nd July 2009 14th May, 2012

Q ua lifica tion Electrical Engineer, 
MS (Electrical Power 
Systems), MBA

M.E., PGDM B.Tech., Advance 
Management Program, 
Harvard Business School

Expertise in specific Currently M r Silveyra is 
the President o f Prolec 
CE.

M r S ilve y ra  has been 
a sso c ia te d  w ith  the  
Xignux group for over 30 
years in  v a rio u s  
responsibilities and has 
varied experience. Prior 
to  this he was associated 
w ith  AEG M exicana as 
P rocess E ng in ee r in 
1974, rose to the position 
o f  D e p u ty  G en e ra l 
M anager before jo in ing  
H YLSA E n g in e e rin g  
D ire c t io n  in th e  year 
19 78  as E le c tr ic a l 
Engineer Manager

C u rre n t ly  he is C h ie f 
Executive -  Power Business 
D e v e lo p m e n t in  Shree 
C em en ts  L td . He w as 
fo rm e r ly  th e  E xe cu tive  
D ire c to r  o f  PTC In d ia  
L im ite d  [ fo rm e r ly  P ow er 
Trading Com pany o f India 
Lim ited]. He has more than 
36 years o f in d u s try  
expe rience  and has been 
asso c ia te d  w ith  BHEL, 
N e lco, CCEE-Alstom, Tata 
H o n e y w e ll and H y u n d a i 
U n ite c h  E le c tr ic a l 
T ransm iss io n  L im ite d  at 
v a r io u s  le ve ls  o f 
responsibilities in the area of 
P ro je c t M an a g e m e n t, 
M a rk e tin g , Business 
D evelopm ent and General 
Management

Currently he is the President and Chief 
Executive O ffice r of GE Energy - India 
Region and is a Corporate O fficer of 
the Ceneral Electric Company. He has 
m ore  th a n  26  years o f in d u s try  
experience and has been associated 
w ith  T he  Tata P ow er C o m p a n y  
L im ite d , as E xecu tive  D ire c to r  - 
Strategy and Business Developm ent 
and a m em b er o f th e  B oa rd  O f 
Directors. He was also a m em ber of 
th e  B oard  o f o th e r Tata C ro u p  
Companies and Joint Ventures such as 
Tata Projects, Tata BP Solar, M aithon 
Pow er, D a g a ch h u  Pow er, 
Ceodynamics, KPC and A ru tm in  Coal 
Companies.
Previously, Banmali was the Managing 
D irector o f W artsila India Lim ited, a 
listed Company in India and a Member 
o f the W arts ila G lobal Power Plant 
Management Team.

Directorships held None Tannex Power Generation 
Lim ited

None

M em bership of 
Committees* None None None

O ther than M r Arun Bhalla and M r Banmali Agrawala none o f the other Directors are interested in the ir reappointment.



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS Rs. in Lakhs

2011-12 2010-n 2009-10 2008-09 2007-08 2006-07 2005-06 2004-05

Gross Sales & O ther Income

Net Sales & O ther Income

Earnings before Depreciation, 
Interest and Tax (EBDIT)

Depreciation

Profit After Tax

Equity D iv idend %

D ividend Payout

Equity Share Capital

Reserves and Surplus

Net W orth

Gross Fixed Assets

Net Fixed Assets

Total Assets

12607

11572

(3110)

412

(3998)

1062

6448

7510

10018

7933

17599

12416

11428

(1861)

380

(2274)

1062

10446

11508

9945

8130

15923

11020

10249

(533)

387

(839)

1062

12735

13797

9381

7940

14885

24157

21100

6593

392

3897

124

1317

1062

13574

14636

9501

8212

16632

23153

19345

6123

174

3902

60

637

1062

11218

12280

9219

8313

14155

19115

15859

4225

114

2621

45

478

1062

8065

9127

4574

3826

9971

11233

9352

1809

85

1106

20

212

1062

6075

7137

2041

1344

7501

8175

6803

1230

86

797

20

56

282

2111

2393

1677

1063

2786

KEY INDICATORS 2011-12 2010-11 2009-10 2008-09 2007-08 2006-07 2005-06 2004-05

Earnings per Share - Rs. (37.65) (21.42) (7.90) 36.69 36.71 24.00 14.34 28.29

Turnover per share - Rs. 118.71 116.91 103.79 227.47 218.00 179.99 105.77 290.21

Book value per share - Rs. 70.72 108.36 129.92 137.81 114.76 85.07 66.33 84.90

D e b t; Equity Ratio 0.71:1 0.09:1 0.07:1 0.10:1 0.12:1 0.07:1 0.03:1 0.09:1

EBDIT /  Cross Turnover % -25% -15% -5% 27% 26% 22% 16% 15%

Net Profit Margin % -32% -18% -8% 18% 20% 17% 12% 12%

RO N W  % -35% -16% -6% 27% 32% 29% 15% 33%

ROCE % -32% -15% -6% 35% 28% 27% 15% 33%



DIRECTORS' REPORT

Your Directors present the 20th Annual Report on the business 
and operations o f your Com pany together w ith  the Audited 
Statement o f A ccounts and the A u d ito r 's  Report fo r the 
financia l year ended 31st March, 2012.

FINANCIAL RESULTS (Rupees in Lakhs)

Year ended 
March 31,2012

Year ended 

March 31, 2011

INCOM E

G ross Sales &  O th e r  In c o m e 12,607.20 1 2 ,4 1 6 .7 5

G ross P ro fit /  (Loss) b e fo re  

d e p re c ia t io n  &  ta x (3,586.64) (2 ,0 1 2 .3 5 )

D e p re c ia tio n 411.72 3 7 9 .9 8

P ro fit /  (Loss) b e fo re  tax (3,998.36) (2 ,3 9 2 .3 3 )

P ro v is io n  fo r  taxes — (1 02 .92 )

P r io r  p e r io d  /  Extra o rd in a ry  

item s — (0 .18 )

B a la n ce  o f  p ro f it  o f  e a r lie r  years 4,688.60 6 ,9 7 8 .1 9

Balance aval lable fo r appropria tion 690.24 4 ,6 8 8 .6 0

APPROPRIATIONS

G e n e ra l Reserve — -

D iv id e n d - -

Tax o n  D iv id e n d - -

B a lance ca rried  to  Ba lance  Sheet 690.24 4 ,6 8 8 .6 0

OPERATIONS AND PERFORMANCE

In the year under review, your Com pany continued to face 
stiff challenges in getting orders due to com petition and price 
pressures. In addition, sluggish clim ate for new investment 
led to delay in new projects resulting in low  ava ilab ility  of 
orders. However, your Com pany was successful in getting 
order for 180M VA transformer to be delivered in June 2012, 
w h ich  is s ignificant one and w o u ld  enhance the technical 
capab ility  o fth e  Com pany to receive such orders in future.

Your C om pany has taken steps to  enhance its presence 
g lobally  through its m arketing network and during the year 
under review value o f export orders received was Rs.29 crores 
and the current total order backlog stands at Rs.l 14 crores.

Your Com pany's perform ance for the year was im pacted 
s ig n if ic a n tly  due to  custom ers ' p ro je c t delays and site

readiness, resulting in low  production. In addition, increase 
in input cost coupled w ith  firm  price contracts and higher 
fixed costs, resulted in loss for the year under review.

DIRECTORS

M r Luis Carols Silveyra, has been inducted into the Board 
and his tenure expires in the 20th Annual General M eeting in 
terms o fth e  provisions o f the Companies Act 1956. M r Luis 
Carlos Sivelyra, has been nominated as Chairman o fthe  Board.

M r Jorge Sepulveda and M r Kishore Jayaraman, Directors have 
resigned from  the Board. The Directors w ou ld  like to  place 
on record the services rendered by M r Jorge Sepulveda and 
M r Kishore Jayaraman during the ir tenure as Directors.

M r Banmali Agrawala, has been inducted into the Board and 
his tenure expires in the 20th Annual General M eeting and 
needs to be re-elected in that meeting.

A t the 20th Annual General Meeting, M r Arun Bhalla retires 
by ro ta t io n  and be in g  e lig ib le  o ffe rs  h im s e lf fo r  re ­
appointm ent.

The above appointm ent/re-appointm ent forms part of Notice 
o f the forthcom ing 20th Annual General M eeting and the 
respective resolutions are recommended for your approval.

Profiles o f these D irectors as required by Clause 49 o f the 
Listing Agreement are attached to the N otice o f the 20th 
Annual General Meeting.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to  the p rovis ions o f Section 217 (2AA) o f the 
Companies Act, 1956, your D irectors confirm  that;

1) in the preparation o f the annual accounts for the 
f in a n c ia l yea r ended 31st M a rch , 2 0 12  the  
applicab le accounting standards had been fo llow ed 
along w ith  proper explanation relating to  material 
departures;

2) the D irectors had selected such accounting policies 
and applied them consistently and made judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as 
to give a true and fa ir v iew  of the state o f affairs o f 
the Company at the end o fthe  financial year 2011 -12 
and of the Profit & Loss Account o f the Company for 
the year under review;

3) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care 
for the maintenance o f adequate accounting records 
in accordance w ith  the provisions o fth e  Companies 
Act, 1956 for safeguarding the assets o fth e  Company 
and p re ven ting  and de te c tin g  fraud and o ther 
irregularities;

4) the D irectors had prepared the accounts fo r the 
financial year ended 31st March 2012 on a 'going 
concern basis'.



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Com pany is com m itted to good corporate governance 
aligned w ith  the best corporate practices.

A separate Report on Corporate G overnance along w ith  
Aud itor's Certificate on Com pliance w ith  the conditions o f 
Corporate Governance as stipulated in Clause 49 o f the Listing 
Agreement w ith  the Stock Exchanges is provided as a part o f 
this Annual Report, besides the Management Discussion and 
Analysis.

AUDITORS
M/s B S R and Co, Chartered Accountants, the retiring Auditors, 
have expressed the ir w illingness to be reappointed.

FIXED DEPOSITS
Your Com pany has not accepted any deposits and, as such, 
no am ount o f principa l o r interest was outstanding on the 
date o f the Balance Sheet.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TEC H NO LO G Y  
ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND  
OUTGO
The inform ation as prescribed under Section 217(1 )(e) of the 
Companies Act, 1956, read w ith  the Companies {Disclosure 
of Particulars in the Report o f the Board o f Directors) Rules,

1988, is given in a separate annexure [Annexure "I"], w h ich  
forms a part o f this Report.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

There are no employees earning remuneration in excess of 
the lim its prescribed under provisions o f Sec. 217(2A) o f the 
Companies A ct 1956 read w ith  Companies (Particulars of 
Employees) Rules 1975.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
Your Directors express the ir appreciation o f the continued 
coopera tion  o f G overnm ents and G overnm ent agencies, 
bankers, customers, suppliers and also the valuable assistance 
and guidance received from Xignux, General Electric Company 
and Prolec-GE and all the shareholders. Your Directors also 
wish to thank all employees for the ir contribution, support and 
continued cooperation during the year.

For and on behalf o f the Board o f Directors 

IN D O  TECH TRANSFORMERS LIMITED

Luis Carlos Silveyra
Chairman

Jorge Lozano
Director

Place; Chennai 
Date : M ay 14, 2012



ANNEXURE I T O  DIRECTORS'REPORT

in fo rm a tio n  as req u ire d  under Section 217(1){e) o f the 
Companies Act, 1956.

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

Your Com pany is not a power intensive industry and
hence the scope for conservation o f energy is not much.
However the fo llow ing  energy saving measures have been
carried out.

a) The Company has been regularly striving to conserve 
use o f electrical energy by im plem entation o f energy 
audit and energy conservation measures. Process 
procedures have been optim ized to reduce energy 
consum ption per unit/rupee o f production.

b) The fluorescent lights at the Plant have been fitted 
w ith  e lec tron ic  ba llast fo r h igher e ffic ie ncy  and 
conservation o f energy.

c) The design o f the D is tribu tion  Transformer Plant 
and Open Ventila ted D ry Type Transformer p lant 
at T h iru m azh isa i and Large Pow er Transform er 
Plant in Kancheepuram facilitates natural lighting 
during normal day shifts and is adequate for most 
o f the opera tions resu lting in saving in ligh tin g  
costs.

d) In Thirum azhisai Power Transformer Plant a ll lights 
are Metal Ha lide lamps w h ich  give better e ffic iency/ 
econom y as compared to Sodium Vapour Lamps

e) Large Power Transformer Plant at Kancheepuram

i. Vapour Phase D rying is an advancement on the 
drying m ethod for transformer w indings/coils. 
Instead o f conventional drying, using steam or 
electric ity, Shellsol or equivalent is used as a 
so lve n t in va p o u r phase d ry in g . There is 
significant saving in drying tim e thus increasing 
productiv ity  and quality.

ii. Therm ic flu id  is used as the m edium  o f heating 
and this therm ic flu id  is heated in boilers using 
furnace o il. W hen compared to conventional 
electric heating, this method o f heating results 
in significant saving in the running cost.

iii. W ind ing  machines w ith  variable drives are used 
w h ich  enables the machines to start at zero or 
m in im u m  speed, avo id ing  jerks to  the c o il. 
Braking is also smooth. This ensures error free 
co il w ind ing  on the machines and also savings 
in energy consumed by the machines.

iv. The 1600 KVA energy e ffic ie n t transfo rm er 
in s ta lle d  at th e  K a n ch e e p u ra m  P ow er 
transfo rm er P lant has laser scribed core to  
m in im ize  core loss and increase efficiency.

f) In the Thirum azhisai Plant, Electronic controllers for 
m on ito ring  the dem and ensures that non-critica l 
equ ipm en t is shut o ff  w hen a llo tte d  dem and is 
reached resulting in op tim um  utiliza tion  o f power.

g) In Thirumazhisai plant, continuous m on ito ring  of 
loads and usage resulting in op tim iz ing  draw dow n 
from  grid and u tiliz in g  spare generator capacity.

h) In both Thirum azhisai and Kancheepuram plants, 
usage o f power in test labs /  o il filtra tion  plant has 
been optim ized through process study, resulting in 
less consum ption o f power.

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 

Research & Development:

1. Specific areas in w h ich  R&D is carried out by the 
Company.

In th e  O V D T  p la n t, th e  V a cu u m  Pressure 
Impregnation (VPI) Plant has been designed such that 
a fine coat over the coils is obtained and consumption 
o f varnish is reduced.

Benefits derived as a result o f the above R&D:

The de ve lo p m e n t and in tro d u c tio n  o f va rious  
com p on en ts  have c o n tr ib u te d  to  re d u c tio n  in 
production cost and im provem ent in quality. As a 
result, the Company has good scope in new market 
entry, cost reduction, better product performance and 
increased com petitive ab ility  and broader product 
profile.

2. Future plan o f action:

A ll the  above  stated a c tiv itie s  w i l l  be fu rth e r 
accelerated and am plified to  ensure conform ance 
and further developments.

M odern plant and m achinery have been installed 
such as w ind ing  machines and vapour phase drying 
ovens w h ic h  w i l l  en ab le  fas te r p rocess ing  o f 
transformers w ith  less energy consum ption.

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The foreign exchange earnings o f the Com pany during 
the year under review was Rs.933.54 lakhs and outgo 
was Rs. 243.73 lakhs.



CORPORATE G O VERNA NCE REPORT

COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE:

The Company's ph ilosophy is to aim at the highest levels of 
qua lity  management through transparency and com m itm ent 
to  a ll the stakeholders v iz . its shareholders, em ployees. 
Government, lenders and the promoters. Management ensures 
that its day to day business transactions are conducted in an 
open and honest manner.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:
The Board o f D irectors provides the strategic d irection and 
thrust to the operations o f the Company. The Board has non­
w hole tim e Chairman and five other Directors. O ut o f these, 
three members are Independent Directors.

Except M r Luis Carlos Silveyra and Mr. Jorge Lozano, all other 
Directors are liable to retire by rotation.

BOARD PROCEDURES:
The Company Secretary prepares the agenda in consultation w ith 
the Chairman of the Board of Directors and the Chairman o fthe  
various committees. The agenda for the meetings of the Board 
and its Committees, together w ith  the appropriate supporting 
documents, are circulated well in advance o f the meetings. 
Attendance at Board Meetings, last Annual General M eeting 
(AGM) and number o f other Directorships and Chairmanships/ 
M em berships o f Com m ittees o f each D irec to r in various 
companies are stated be low  :
During the year under review, the Board o f D irectors met 4 
times on, 13th M ay 2011, 5th August, 2011, 11 th November 
2011 and 14th February 2012.

Name of 
Directors

Type of 
Director

Board
Meetings
Attended

AGM
Attended

No. of 
Committee 
Member­

ships Held

No. of other 
Director­

ships 
Held

tu is Carlos 

Silveyra®®

Non-

Executive

2 — — —

. Iwge
Lozano

Non-

Executive

4 Yes — —

Jorge

Sepulveda®

Non - 

Executive

3 Yes --- —

Kishore

Jayaraman

Non - 

Executive

4 Yes --- —

Arun

Bhalla

Independent 4 Yes — 1

Arun

Srivastava

Independent 2 Yes — 1

M. S. 

Srinivasan

Independent 4 Yes -- 2

* The D irectorsh ips he ld  by D irectors as m entioned above, do not 
in c lude  Alternate D irectorsh ips, D irectorsh ips o f Foreign Com panies, 
Section 25 Com pan ies and Private L im ited Com panies.

* In accordance w ith  C lause 49, M em bersh ips/Chairm anships o f on ly 
the Aud it and Shareholders'/Investors' C rievan ce  Com m ittees o f all 
Pub lic  Lim ited Com panies [excluding Indo Tech Transformers Limited] 
have been considered.

©-Resigned on 11 th Novem ber 2011, ©©-Inducted on 11 th Novem ber 

2011 Board m eeting

Brief Resume of Directors seeking re-appointment:
A brief resume o f D irectors seeking re-appointm ent at the 
Twentieth Annual General M eeting is given as part o f the 
Notice to the Twentieth Annual General Meeting.

AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The A ud it Com m ittee consists o f tw o  Independent Directors 
and one Non-Executive D irector viz.

SI. No. Name Category o f  Membership

1 Mr. Arun Bhalla Chairman

2 Mr. A run Srivastava M em ber

3 Mr. Jorge Lozano M em ber

W ith  changes in the Board during the year, A ud it Committee 
has been reconstituted.

Mr. A run Bhalla is the C h ief Executive - Power Business 
Developm ent in Shree Cements Ltd. He was form erly the 
Executive D irector o f PTC India Lim ited [fo rm erly  Power 
Trading Company o f India Lim ited]. He has more than 35 
years o f industry experience and has been associated w ith  
BHEL, Nelco, CGEE Alstom, Tata Honeyw ell and Hyundai 
Unitech Electrical Transmission Lim ited at various levels of 
responsibilities in the area o f Project Management, Marketing, 
Business Developm ent and General Management.

Mr. Arun Srivastava is the former Managing D irector and Chief 
Executive O fficer of Essar Power Lim ited and was on their 
Board for more that 12 years. Earlier, he was associated w ith  
the National Thermal Power Corporation Lim ited (NTPC).

Mr. Jorge Lozano has worked over 3 decades in Prolec-GE 
Internacional, S De R.L. De C.V., Nuevo Leon, M exico in 
various capacities, before retiring as President in November 
2011 and currently associated as Consultant in Prolec-GE 
Internacional, S De R.L. De C.V.

Mr. N. Nambi Rajan, Com pany Secretary, is the Secretary of 
the A ud it Committee.

Terms o f Reference; Clause 49 o f the Listing Agreement lists 
the role o f the A ud it Committee. The gist o f the terms of 
eference is as fo llows:

Oversee C om pany's f ina nc ia l reporting  process and 
disclosures.

Recommend appo in tm ent/rem ova l/rem unera tion  and 
payment o f other fees o f the statutory auditors.

Review w ith  the management the quarterly and annual 
financia l statements before submission to  the Board.

Review  w ith  the M anagem ent, pe rfo rm ance  o f the 
Statutory and Internal Auditors.

Review adequacy o f internal contro l systems, internal 
audit department, reporting structure and frequency.

D iscussion w ith  in te rna l aud ito rs o f any s ign ifican t 
findings and fo llow -u p  thereon.



The Attendance o f D irectors at the A ud it Com m ittee Meetings 
held during the year ended 31 st March 2012 is given below:

SI. No. Members Meetings Meetings
Attended

1 Mr. Arun Bhalla 4 4

2 Mr. A run Srivastava 4 2

3 Mr. Jorge Sepulveda* 4 3

4 M r Jorge Lozano© 4 1

•-Resigned on 11th Novem ber 2011, © -Inducted on 11th Novem ber 

2011 Board meeting

SHAREHOLDERS/INVESTORS GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE:
The Shareholders/Investors Grievance Com m ittee consists o f 
three non-executive D irector viz..

SI. No.

1

Name

M r Luis Carlos Silveyra

Mr. Jorge Lozano

Mr. Kishore Jayaraman

Category of Membership

Chairman

M em ber

M em ber

W ith changes in the Board during the year. Shareholders /  
Investors Grievance Com m ittee has been reconstituted.

The C o m m itte e  oversees the  pe rfo rm a n ce  o f in ves to r 
grievances and recom m ends measures to  im p ro ve  the 
shareholders/investors service. Mr. N. Nam bira jan, Company 
Secretary, is the Secretary of the Com m ittee. The Committee 
met 4 tim es on, 13th M ay 2011, 5th August, 2011, 11th 
Novem ber 2011 and 14th February 2012.

During the Financial Year ended 31 st M arch 2012, a total of 
2 com plaints, relating to revalidation o f D iv idend Warrants 
were received from  the shareholders. A ll these com plaints 
were resolved w ith in  the financia l year.

The Attendance o f D irectors at the Shareholders/Investors 
Grievance and Share Transfer Committee Meetings held during 
the year ended 31 st March 2012 is given below:

SI.
No.

Members Meetings
Held

Meetings
Attended

1 M r Luis Carlos Silveyra © 4 1

2 Mr. Jorge Lozano 4 4

3 Mr. Jorge Sepulveda* 4 3

4 Mr. Kishore Jayaraman 4 4

•-Resigned on 11th Novem ber 2011, © -Inducted on 11th 
Novem ber 2011 Board meeting

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

The Remuneration Committee consists of three non-executive 
D irector viz..

SI. No. Name Category of Membership

1 Mr. M  S Srinivasan Chairman

2 Mr. A run Bhalla M em ber

3 Mr. Arun Srivatsava Member

The C om m ittee reviews and approves the rem uneration 
o f M anagerial Personnel and the terms and cond itions of 
a p p o in tm e n t and in a c c o rd a n c e  w ith  the  p ro v is io n s  
o f Com panies A c t 1956. Mr. N. N am bira jan , C om pany 
Secretary, is the Secretary of the Com m ittee. During the year 
under review  the Com m ittee has not met.

The Independent Directors are not paid commission over and 
above the sitting fees. They are paid sitting Fees o f Rs.20,000 
for attending a meeting o f the Board or Com m ittee thereof. 
Non-executive Directors have w aived receiving sitting fees 
for both the Board and Com m ittee meetings.

Details o f Sitting fees paid to Independent D irectors during 
the financia l year 2011-12:

Rs.

SI.No. Name Board

Meeting

Audit

Committee

Share

holders'

Grievance

Committee

Remune­

ration

Committee

1. Mr. A run  B ha lla 80 ,000 80 ,000 — —

2. M r. A run  

S rivastava 40 ,000 40 ,000

3. M r. M . S. 

S rin ivasan 80 ,000 — — -----

Manager under the Companies Act, 1956

M r M a n u e l H e rn a n d e z  B ravo, is M an ag e r un de r the  
Companies Act, 1956 w ith  effect from  1 st December 2010.

General Meetings:

The particulars o f Annual General Meetings held during the 
last three years are as under:

Year Date and Time Venue

2011 5th August 2011 
at 04.00 P.M.

2010 23rd July 2010 
at 12.15 P.M.

2009 4th September 2009 
at 12.00 Noon.

Pleasant Days Resort 
Chennai-Bangalore Trunk 
Road, Palanjur, 
Sembarambakkam 
Chennai 602 103

Pleasant Days Resort 
Chennai-Bangalore Trunk 
Road, Palanjur, 
Sembarambakkam 
Chennai 602 103

Pleasant Days Resort 
Chennai-Bangalore Trunk 
Road, Palanjur, 
Sembarambakkam 
Chennai 602 103



The particulars o f Extra-Ordinary General Meetings held 
during the last three years are as under:

Year Date and Time Venue

2009 12th January 2009 Pleasant Days Resort
at 11.00 A .M . Chennai-Bangalore Trunk

Road, Palanjur,
Sembarambakkam
Chennai 602 103

No Special Resolutions were passed at the aforesaid General 
Meetings necessitating postal ballot.

Disclosures:

a. Related Party Transactions: Disclosure on transaction(s) 
w ith  related party as required under Accounting Standard 
18 issued by the Institute o f Chartered Accountants o f India 
has been incorporated in the Notes to the Accounts.

b. There are no instances o f non-com pliance w ith  Stock 
Exchange or SEBI regulations, nor any cases o f penalties 
or strictures imposed by any Stock Exchange or SEBI or 
any statutory au thority for any v io la tion  related to Capital 
Markets during the last three years.

c. The Com pany has com plied w ith  the requirements o f the 
Listing Agreement w ith  the Stock Exchanges as w e ll as 
w ith  the Regulations o fth e  Securities and Exchange Board 
o f India.

d. The Com pany affirms that no em ployee has been denied 
access to the audit committee.

Means of Communication:

The Q uarterly Financial Results are published in English and 
vernacular newspapers. These results are generally published 
in the A ll India editions o f The Economic Times/The Financial 
Express and M akkal Kural. The results are also posted the 
Company's website w w w .pro lecge.in /w w w .indo-tech .com

Management Discussion and Analysis Report:
The Management Discussion and Analysis (MDA) giv ing an 
ove rv iew  o f the Com pany's business and its financia ls is 
provided separately as part o f this Annual Report.

Code of Conduct:

The code o f Conduct fo r all the members o f the Board and 
senior management o f the Com pany has been posted on 
th e  w e b s ite  o f th e  C o m p a n y : w w w .p ro le c g e . in /  
w w w .indo-tech .com

Shareholders' Information:
1. Annual General Meeting

Date : August 10, 2012 
Time : 4 .00 P.M.
Venue : Pleasant Days Resort 
Chennai-Bangalore Trunk Road 
Palanjur, Sembarambakkam 
Chennai - 602 103.

2. Financial Calendar
A pril to March

3. Book Closure Date
August 7 to August 10, 2012

4. Financial Calendar (tentative)
Results for the quarter ending June 30, 2012 - 
Second week o f August 2012

Results for the quarter ending September 30, 2012 - 
Second week o f Novem ber 2012

Results for the quarter ending December 31, 2012 - 
Second week of February 2012

Results fo r the quarter ending 31st March, 2013 - 
Second week o f M ay 2013

Annual General M eeting - Second week o f August 2013

5. Listing of Shares on Stock Exchanges

The Equity Shares o f the C om pany are listed on the 
National Stock Exchange o f India Lim ited and Bombay 
Stock Exchange Lim ited.

Stock C ode:

BSE SCRIP CODE NSE SYMBOL

532717 INDOTECH

The ISIN No. is INE332H01014.

6 . Status of Listing Fees

The Company has paid Listing Fees for the year 2012-2013 
to  the  N a tio n a l S tock Exchange o f In d ia  L im ite d  
and B om b ay  S tock E xchange L im ite d  w ith in  the  
stipulated tim e.

7. Stock Price Data

M onth

NSE BSE
High Low High Low

A pril 2011 162.95 154.95 169.00 144.15

M ay 2011 145.71 139.45 158.85 125.10

June 2011 162.39 143.66 166.30 126.00

July 2011 144.28 135.26 152.00 127.90

August 2011 151.07 131.35 159.80 110.05

September 2011 123.52 114.28 132.00 107.00

O ctober 2011 134.45 120.07 142.00 107.75

Novem ber 2011 118.78 109.00 137.90 90.05

December 2011 90.27 84.30 104.60 69.10

January 2012 97.48 89.65 107.50 72.00

February 2012 102.16 96.80 107.85 92.40

March 2012 95.87 89.53 105.95 81,35

Note : The Equity Shares o f the Com pany were listed on 
NSE and BSE on 16th March, 2006.

http://www.prolecge.in/www.indo-tech.com
http://www.prolecge.in/
http://www.indo-tech.com


8 . Registrar and Share Transfer Agents 
Link Intime India Private Limited
(Formerly Intim e Spectrum Registry Limited)
C-13 Pannalal Silk M ills  Com pound
L.B.S. Marg, Bhandup (West), M um bai 400 078
Phones : 91-22-25960320-28
Fax : 91-22-25946969/25960329
e-m ail : isrl@ link in tim e.co.in .

9. Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March 2012

15. Distribution Schedule as on March 31, 2012

Category No. of Shares Percentage

Foreign Com pany 7,895,625 74.3468

M utual Funds 42,614 0.4013

Private Corporate Bodies 329,885. 3.1063

Public 2 ,243,948 21.1294

NRI's 76,955 0.7246

Clearing Members________________ 30,973 0.2916

Total 10,620,000 100.0000

10. Share Transfer
In accordance w ith  the Listing Agreements w ith  the Stock 
Exchanges, the Board has authorized the CEO, CFO and 
the Com pany Secretary and C hief Com pliance Officer, 
to severally approve share transfers, transmissions, splits, 
sub-division, consolidation, remat or replace any share 
certificate(s) and also to issue duplicate share certificate(s) 
in addition to resolving investor com pla ints received, if 
any.

12. Shareholding Summary
Category No. of Holders Total Shares % to Equity
Physical 2 2 —
NSDL 10,145 9,703,609 91.6154

CDSL 4,360 916,389 8.3700

13. Plant locations
Survey No 153-210 
llluppapatu Village, 
Near Rajakulam 
KM 64, Chennai- 
Bangalore H ighw ay 
Kancheepuram D istrict 
Tamil Nadu

DP 14-19 SIDCO 
Industrial Estate, 
Thirum azhisai 
Chennai 600 124

DP 36 SIDCO 
Industrial Estate 
Thirum azhisai 
Chennai 600 124

V I1/222 Koyyamarakkad
Kanjikode
Palakkad 678 621

14. Address for Correspondence
The Com pany Secretary

Indo Tech Transformers Lim ited

DP:36 Sidco Industrial Estate
Thirum azhisai

Chennai 600 124
P hone; 91-44-30289830/9833

Email : investor@ indo-tech.com

No. o f Equity 

Shares held

No. of % to

Shareholders Shareholders

No. of % of

Shares Shareholding

1 to 5000 13,840 95.4021 10,170,310 9.5766

5001 to 10000 330 2.2748 2,656,530 2.5014

10001 to 20000 180 1.2408 2,585,270 2.4343

20001 to 30000 47 0.3240 1,147,820 1.0808

30001 to 40000 35 0.2413 1,202,500 1.1323

40001 to 50000 18 0.1241 852,980 0.8032

50001 to 100000 26 0.1792 1,782,070 1.6780

Greater than 100000 31 0.2137 85,802,520 80.7934

TOTAL 14,507 100.0000 106,200,000 100.0000

Market price Ind ices: H igh/Low o f company's share price 
vis-a-vis N ifty  Index on the National Stock Exchange of 
India Lim ited, M um bai, during the period A pril 2011 to 
M arch 2012 is furnished below:

Share Price Niffy Index

Month High Low High Low

April 2011 162.95 154.95 5883,40 5793.54

M ay 2011 145.71 139.45 5537.52 5454.99

June 2011 162.39 143.66 5507.90 5436.06

July 2011 144.28 135.26 5637.77 5563.08

August 2011 151.07 131.35 5123.00 5010.71

September 2011 123.52 114.28 5060.77 4960.80

October 2011 134.45 120.07 5093.54 5010.48

November 2011 118.78 109.00 5030.74 4940.00

December 2011 90.27 84.30 4839.30 4739.96

January 2012 97.48 89.65 4965.99 4901.50

February 2012 102.16 96.80 5460.16 5375,00

March 2012 95.87 89.53 5349,79 5254.35

Adoption o f Non-M andatory Requirements o f Clause 49

1. The C o m p a n y  c o m p lie s  w ith  the  fo l lo w in g  n o n ­
mandatory requirements stipulated under Clause 49.

Whistle Blower Policy:

The Company has a w h istle b low er mechanism wherein 
the employees are free to report v io lations o f laws, rules, 
regulations or uneth ica l conduct to  th e ir im m edia te 
supervisor or such other person as may be notified by 
the management. The con fidentia lity  o f those reporting 
v io la tions shall be m ainta ined and they shall not be 
subjected to any discrim inatory practices.

For and on behalf o f the Board

Luis Carlos Silveyra jorge Lozano
C h a irm a n  D ire c to r

mailto:isrl@linkintime.co.in
mailto:investor@indo-tech.com


FHOLECI

M A N A G EM EN T'S  D ISC U SSIO N  A N D  ANALYSIS

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report contains fo rw ard-iooking  statements, w h ich  may 
be identified by the ir use of words like 'plans', 'expects', 'w il l ',  
'antic ipates', 'believes', 'in tends', 'pro jects', 'estimates', or 
other words o f s im ilar meaning. A ll statements that address 

expectations or projections about the future, inc lud ing, but 
not lim ited to  statements about the com pany's strategy for 
growth, product development, market position, expenditures, 

and financial results, are forward looking statements. Forward- 
looking statements are based on certain assumptions and 
expectations o f future events. The com pany cannot guarantee 
that these assumptions and expectations are accurate o r w ill 
be realized. The com pany's actual results, performance or 
achievements could thus differ m aterially from those projected 
in any such fo rw a rd -lo o k in g  statements. The com pany 

assumes no responsibility to p u b lic ly  amend, m odify or revise 
any forward looking statements, on the basis of any subsequent 
developments, in fo rm ation or events.

INDUSTRY

Indian econom y is going through a sluggish phase w ith  GDP 
growth for the year 2011 -12 is estimated at 6% compared to 
approx 8% in earlier years. The p o licy  in itiatives undertaken 

by Government o f India to contro l in flation and give thrust to 
growth, led to lower expenditure and slower pace of reforms 
in the power sector.

During the 11th plan period, though the power generation 

was at 55G W  as against the target o f 10OGW, investment in 
T&D  segment is on ly  40%  o f the total investment in power 
sector. This has resulted in price pressure in the T & D  segment 

due to excess capacity created over the plan period to meet 
the planned generation requirement.

Thus the transformer industry has been worst impacted w ith  

capacity u tiliza tion  be low  55%  and price realization is almost 
12%  lo w er com pared to  previous year resulting in low  
margins, w h ich  is like ly  to continue for a year. The industry 
believes that w ith  30% higher outlay expected during the 12th 

plan period, recovery cou ld  be possible over that period.

OPPORTUNITIES, THREATS AND RISKS

The com pany by leveraging General Electric global network 
is focusing on export where margins are better. W ith  help 
fro m  p a re n t c o m p a n y  P ro lec GE, im p ro v e d  business 
processes have been introduced for better quality and tim ely 
de livery of products.

The company has changed strategy to balance between export 
and dom estic  m arket, also operate in renew able energy 
segment o f the industry, where re liab ility  and qua lity  are 
considered as lead advantage over other players.

O u r opera tion  do depend on success o f export and fo r 
domestic business on industrial growth in country. O ther risk 
areas are:

•  W e observe tha t w hen large p ro jec ts  are de layed 
In fras truc tu re  com pan ies w hose goods have been 

m anufactured do not lift ready materials due to cash 
constraints o f customer. This risk w h ich  impacts our cash 
and pro fit

•  Delayed payments from  u tility  due to cash constraints

• Power shortage in Tamil Nadu

• C o n tin u a tio n  o f lo w  recovery  due h igh capac ity  in 
transformer segment

PRODUCT PERFORMANCE
1. Revenues

O ur revenues comprise o f Sale of Transformers and Other 
income. The fo llow ing  table shows our revenue for last 
three fiscals ended M arch 31, 2012 :

(Rs. in lakhs)

Sources of Revenue FY2012 FY2011 FY2010

Sale of Transformers 12,504.21 12,271.38 10,566.65

Other Income 102.99 145.37 453.29

Total Revenue 12,607,20 12,416.75 11,019.94

W e derive our revenues prim arily from  sale o f transformers
manufactured to State Electricity Boards, EPC Contractors,
Industries etc.

Expenditure

The fo llow ing  table shows our expenditure for last three
fiscals ended March 31, 2012 :

(Rs. in lakhs)

Expenditure Head FY2012 FY2011 FY2010

Raw Material consumed 10,356.49 9,345.48 7,793.07

Employees Remuneration 1,525.54 1,655.36 1,039.74

Manufacturing, Selling
and Administrative
expenses 2800.12 2,287.73 1,949.44

Preliminary Expenses - - -
Finance Cost 476.09 151.74 233.41

Depreciation 411,72 379,98 386.53

Total 15,569.96 13,820.29 11,402.19

BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND OUTLOOK
Currently the power sector is undergoing sluggish phases w ith 
less investment in T&D  sector and delay in com pletion of 
projects. The in itiatives taken by Government to augment the 
power generation in line w ith  12th plan projections, to a llow  
more power plants to be set up in the private sector w ill support



the growth o f the transformer business. Further, the focus on 
non-conventional energy w ill lead to more w ind  and solar 
power generation fue llin g  the grow th for transformers. In 
addition to the dom estic market, your Com pany has taken 
steps to foray in to the global market through General Electric 
network to im prove its performance.

RISK AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
The CEO/CFO certifica tion provided in the report discusses 
the adequacy o f our internal contro l systems and procedures.

The C om pany has an in dependen t In ternal A u d ito r  fo r 
p e rio d ica lly  carry ing ou t aud it o f the transactions o f the 
Com pany in order to ensure that recording and reporting are 
adequate and proper. The Internal Auditors independently 
evaluate the adequacy o f internal contro ls to  ensure that 
in terna l contro ls, checks and balances in the system are 
adequate, proper and up-to-date. Remedial measures are 
suggested by them to m itigate the risks identified during the 
course o f the aud it assignments and action plans ensure 
im plem entation of such suggestions. Safeguarding o f assets 
and protection against unauthorized use are also part o f these 
exercises.

FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONS PERFORMANCE

The financia l performance o f your Com pany was severely 
affected by the com bined im pact o f increases in input costs.

delays in projects as w e ll as com ply ing w ith  stringent design 
specifications of the customers. The Company is fu lly  focused 
on reducing the input costs and is using the expertise o f its 
parent company.

Financial Results
(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 
31-M ar-12

Year ended 
31-Mar-11

Total Revenue 12,607.20 12,416.75

O perating Profit (EBDIT) (3,110.55) (1,860.60)

Profit Before Tax (PBT) (3,998.36) (2,377.32)

Profit After Tax (PAT) (3,998.37) (2,274.41)

HUMAN RESOURCES
Your Company's Human Resource function is com m itted to 
m aking Indo Tech a model em ployer by setting benchmarks 
in shap ing the  c u ltu re , d e ve lopm e n t o f m anagers and 
employees and he lp ing them  to set and execute exacting 
s tan dard s  and bus iness o b je c tiv e s . It is fo cu se d  on 
developm ent o f leadership and technical skills o f a ll level o f 
employees. It has undertaken several in itiatives during the 
year, w h ich  have contributed to improvements in recruitment, 
training, retention and developm ent o f talent.



C ERTIFICATIO N BY 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER /  CHIEF F IN A N C IA L OFFICER

W e hereby certify that fo r the financia l year ending 31 st March 2012, on the basis o f the review o f the 
financia l statements and the cash f lo w  statement and to the best o f our knowledge and belie f that;

1. These statements do not contain any m ateria lly untrue statement or om it any material fact or contain 
statements that m ight be misleading.

2. These statements together present a true and fair v iew  o f the Company's affairs and are in com pliance 
w ith  existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations..

3. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered in to by the Company 
during the year ending 31st March 2012, w h ich  are fraudulent, illegal or in v io lation of the Company's 
code o f conduct.

4. We accept responsibility for establishing and m ainta in ing internal controls. We have evaluated the 
effectiveness o f the internal contro l systems o f the Com pany and we have disclosed to the auditors 
and the A ud it Com m ittee those deficiencies, o f w h ich  we are aware, in the design o r operation of 
the internal contro l systems and have taken the required steps to rectify these deficiencies.

5. W e further certify that:-

(a) There have been no significant changes in internal contro l during this year.

(b) There have been no significant changes in accounting polic ies during this year.

(c) There have been no instances of significant fraud of w h ich  w e have become aware and the
invo lvem en t there in o f the management or an em ployee having a s ign ificant role in the
Com pany's internal contro l system.

P lace: Chennai D Alwan Manuel Hernandez Bravo
Date ; M ay 14, 2012 Chief Financial O fficer C hief Executive O fficer

DECLARATION REG ARDING  CO M PLIA N C E BY BOARD MEMBERS 

A N D  SENIOR M A N A G EM EN T PERSONNEL W IT H  

THE C O D E O F C O N D U C T

This is to  con firm  that the Com pany has adopted a Code o f C onduct for all Board members and 
sen io r m anagem ent o f the Com pany. The Code has been hosted on the  C om pany 's  w ebsite  
W W W . indo-tech.com /w w w .pro lecge .in .

W e confirm  that the Com pany has in respect o f the financia l year ended 31st M arch 2012, received from 
the Members o f the Board and the senior management team of the Company a declaration of com pliance 
w ith  the Code o f Conduct as applicable to them.

For the purpose o f this declaration, Senior Management Team means employees in the rank o f Heads o f 
functions.

For and On Behalf of the Board

http://WWW.indo-tech.com/www.prolecge.in


A U D IT O R S ' REPORT O N  CORPORATE G O VERNANCE

To the Members of Indo Tech Transformers Limited

W e have examined the com pliance of conditions of Corporate Covernance by Indo Tech Transformers 

Lim ited ("the Company") for the year ended March 31, 2012 as stipulated in Clause 49 o f the Listing 

Agreement o f the said Com pany w ith  stock exchanges.

The com pliance o f conditions o f Corporate Covernance is the responsibility o f the management. O ur 

examination was lim ited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring 

the com p liance 'o f the conditions of corporate governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of 

op in ion on the financia l statements o f the Company,

In our op in ion and to the best o f our inform ations and according to the explanations given to us, we 

certify that the Com pany has com plied w ith  the conditions o f Corporate Covernance as stipulated in the 

above m entioned Listing Agreements.

W e further state that such com pliance is neither an assurance as to the future v ia b ility  of the Company 

nor the effic iency or effectiveness w ith  w h ich  the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For B S R and Co
Chartered Accountants 

Firm registration No. 128510W

Zubin Shekary
Partner
M em bership No. 048814

P lace: Bangalore 
Date ; M ay 14, 2012



A U D IT O R 'S  REPORT

To

The Members
IN D O  TECH TRANSFORMERS LIMITED

1. W e have audited the attached balance sheet of Indo Tech 
Transformers Limited ("the Company") as at March 31,2012, 
the statement of profit and loss and the cash flo w  statement 
for the year ended on that date annexed thereto. These 
financial statements are the responsibility o f the Company's 
management. O ur responsibility is to express an opin ion 
on these financial statements based on our audit.

2. We conducted our aud it in accordance w ith  auditing 
standards generally accepted in India. Those Standards 
require that w e plan and perform  the aud it to  obtain 

reasonab le  assurance a b o u t w h e th e r the  f in a n c ia l 
statements are free o f material misstatement. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting 
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles 
used and significant estimates made by management, as 

w e ll as e v a lu a tin g  th e  o v e ra ll f in a n c ia l s ta tem ent 
presenta tion . W e be lieve  tha t ou r au d it prov ides a 
reasonable basis for our op in ion.

3. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 

2003, as amended, issued by the Central Government of 
India in terms o f sub-section (4A) o f section 227 o f the 
Companies Act, 1956, w e enclose in the Annexure a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of 
the said Order.

4. Further to our comments in the annexure referred to above, 
we report that;

a. w e have obtained all the inform ation and explanations 
w h ich  to the best o f our knowledge and be lie f were 
necessary fo r the purpose o f our audit;

For 6 S R and Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration No. -  128510W

Zubin Shekary
Partner
M em bership No.: 048814

b. in our op in ion , proper books of account as required 
by law  have been kept by the Com pany so far as 
appears from  our examination o f the books o f account;

c. the balance sheet, statement o f p ro fit and loss and 
cash flo w  statement dealt w ith  by this report are in 
agreement w ith  the books o f account;

d. in our op in ion , the balance sheet, statement o f profit 
and loss and cash f lo w  statement com ply w ith  the 
Accounting Standards referred to in sub-section (3C) 
o f section 211 o f the Companies Act, 1956;

e. on the basis o f w ritten representations received from 
the directors as on March 31,2012 and taken on record 
by the Board of Directors, we report that none of the 
directors is d isqualified as on M arch 31, 2012 from 
being appointed as director in terms o f clause (g) of 
sub-section (1) of section 274 of the Companies Act, 

1956; and

f. in our op in ion and to the best o f our inform ation and 
according to the explanations given to  us, the said 
financia l statements give the in form ation required by 
the Companies Act, 1956, in the manner so required, 
g ive a true and fa ir v iew , in con fo rm ity  w ith  the 
accounting princip les generally accepted in India:

i. in the case o fthe  balance sheet, o fthe  state of affairs 
o f the Com pany as at M arch 31, 2012;

ii. in the case o f the statement o f p ro fit and loss, of 
the loss for the year ended on that date; and

iii. in  the case o fth e  cash flo w  statement, o fth e  cash 
flow s for the year ended on that date.



Annexure to the Auditors' Report to the Members of 
Indo Tech Transformers Limited for the year ended M arch 31, 2012

(Referred to in our report o f even date)

To 

The Members 

IN D O  TECH TRANSFORMERS LIMITED

i. a) The Com pany has m aintained records showing fu ll
particulars and situation o f fixed assets. The Company  
has in itia ted  the process o f  strengthening the records 
so as to  inc lude com prehensive details o f  quantita tive  
in form ation.

b) The Com pany has a regular programme o f physical 
verification o f its fixed assets by w h ich  all fixed assets 
are verified in a phased manner over a period o f tw o 
years. In our op in ion , this pe rio d ic ity  o f physical 
verification is reasonable having regard to the size o f 
the Com pany and the nature o f its assets. No material 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

c) Fixed assets disposed off during the year were not 
substantial and therefore do not affect the going 
concern assumption.

ii. a) The inventory, except stocks lying w ith  th ird  parties
and in transit, has been physica lly  verified by the 
management du ring  the year. In our op in ion , the 
frequency of verification is reasonable. For stocks lying 
w ith  th ird  p a rtie s  at th e  ye a r-e n d , w r it te n  
confirm ations have been obtained.

b) In ou r o p in io n , the procedures fo r the physica l 
verification of inventories fol lowed by the management 
are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of 
the Company and the nature of its business.

c) O n the basis o f our exam ination o f the records of 
inventory, w e are o f the op in ion  that the Company 
has m ainta ined proper records o f inventory. The 
d isc rep anc ies  n o tic e d  on v e r if ic a t io n  be tw een 
phys ica l stocks and the book  records w ere no t 
material and have been properly dealt w ith  in the 
books o f account.

iii. The Com pany has neither granted nor taken any loan, 
secured or unsecured to or from companies, firms or other 
parties covered in the register m aintained under Section 
301 o f the Companies Act, 1956. Thus, paragraph 4(iii) 
o f the O rder is not applicable.

iv. In our op in ion  and according to  the in form ation and 
exp lana tions given to  us, and having regard to  the 
explanation that purchases o f certain items o f inventories 
are fo r the Com pany's specia lised requirem ents and 
s im ila r ly  ce rta in  goods sold are fo r the specia lised 
requirem ents o f the buyers and su itab le  a lte rna tive  
sou rces are n o t a v a ila b le  to  o b ta in  c o m p a ra b le  
quotations, there is an adequate internal contro l system 
commensurate w ith  the size o f the Com pany and the

na tu re  o f its business w ith  regard to  purchase o f 
inventories and fixed assets and w ith  regard to  the sale o f 
goods and services. In our op in ion  and according to the 
in form ation and explanations given to  us, there is no 
continu ing fa ilure to correct m ajor weaknesses in internal 
contro l system.

v. In our op in ion  and according to  the in form ation and 
explanations given to us, there are no  contracts and  
arrangements particulars o f w h ich  need to be entered 
in to  the register m aintained under section 301 o f the 
Companies Act, 1956.

vi. The Com pany has not accepted any deposits from  the 
public.

v ii. In our op in ion , the Company has an internal audit system 
commensurate w ith  its size and the nature o f its business.

v iii.  W e have b ro a d ly  rev iew e d  the  books o f acco u n t 
m a in ta ined  by the C om pany pu rsuan t to  the  rules 
prescribed by the Central Governm ent for maintenance 
of cost records under section 209(1) (d) o f the Companies 
Act, 1956 in respect o f power transformers and are o f the 
op in ion  that prim a facie, the prescribed accounts and 
records have been made and m aintained. However, we 
have not made a detailed exam ination o f the records.

ix. a) Accord ing to the inform ation and explanations given
to  us and on the basis o f our exam ination o f the 
records o f the Company, amounts deducted/accrued 
in the books o f account in respect o f undisputed 
statutory dues inc lud ing provident fund, employees' 
state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, excise duty, 
customs duty, service tax, and other material statutory 
dues have generally been regularly deposited during 
the  year by the  C om pany w ith  the  ap p ro p ria te  
authorities except in respect o f incom e tax deductible  
at source estimated at Rs.7.89 m illio n  w h ich  has not 
been de d u c te d  /  pa id . As e xp la in e d  to  us, the 
Company did  not have any dues on account o f wealth 
tax and investor education and protection fund.

Accord ing to the inform ation and explanations given 
to us, except for tax deduction at source am ounting  
to Rs.5.42 m illion , w h ich is outstanding for m ore than 
six months as at the year end, no undisputed amounts 
payable in respect o f provident fund, employees' state 
insurance, income-tax, sales tax, service tax, customs 
duty, excise duty, cess and other material statutory 
dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2012 for a period 
o f more than six months from  the date they became 
payable.

b) Accord ing to the in form ation and explanations given 
to us, the fo llow ing  dues o f incom e tax, sales tax, 
and customs duty have not been deposited by the 
Company on account of disputes:



PHOLEC i(I)

Name o f the Statute Nature o f the dues Amount 
(In Rs.)

Period to w h ich  the 
amount relates

Forum where dispute 
is pending

The Customs Act, 1962 Custom s D u ty 1 ,417 ,317* FY 200 4-0 5 C ustom  Excise and Service Tax A p p e lla te  
T ribuna l, C hennai

The C entra l Excise Act, 1944 Excise D u ty 151 ,772 FY 200 8-0 9 Assistant C om m iss ioner o f Centra l Excise, 

C hennai

T he C entra l Sales Tax A ct, 1956 Centra l Sales Tax 44 1 ,6 1 8 FY 199 6-9 7 M adras H ig h  C ourt

TNGST, 1959 Penalty 15,607 FY 1996-97 A p p e lla te  Assistant C om m iss ion

The Centra l Sales Tax A ct, 1956 Centra l Sates Tax 170 ,332 * FY 2 00 5 -0 6 Assistant C om m iss ioner o f C o m m erc ia l 
Taxes, Chenna i

The Centra l Sales Tax A ct, 1956 C entra l Sales Tax 191 ,276 * FY 2 00 6 -0 7 Assistant C om m iss ioner o f C om m erc ia l 
Taxes, C hennai

Incom e-tax  A ct, 1961 Incom e  tax 5,548,581 AY 200 5-0 6 C om m iss ioner o f Incom e Tax (Appeals)

Incom e-tax  A ct, 1961 Incom e  tax 6 ,334 ,963 AY 2 00 6 -0 7 C om m iss ioner o f Incom e Tax (Appeals)

Incom e-tax  A ct, 1961 Incom e  tax 5 ,129 ,608 AY 2 00 8 -0 9 C o m m iss ioner o f Incom e Tax (Appeals)

Incom e-tax Act, 1961 Incom e  tax 7 ,487 ,500 AY 2 0 0 9 -1 0 C om m iss ioner o f Incom e Tax (Appeals)

The Custom s A ct, 1962 Penalty 2 5 ,421 ,484 * 2003 to  2005 Joint D ire c to r C e nera l o f  Foreign Trade, 

C hennai

net o f am ount paid under protest.

X.

X I I I .

The Com pany does not have any accumulated losses 
at the end o f the financial year. However, it  has incurred  
cash losses in the current financia l year and im m ediate ly  
preceding financ ia l year.

In our op in ion  and according to  the in form ation and 
explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted 
in repayment o f dues to  its bankers. The Com pany did  
n o t have any o u ts ta n d in g  dues to  any f in a n c ia l 
institu tion or debenture holders during the year.

The Com pany has not granted any loans and advances 
on the basis o f security by w ay o f pledge o f shares, 
debentures and other securities.

In our op in ion  and according to  the in form ation and 
explanations given to us, the Com pany is not a chit 
fund or a n idh i /  m utual benefit fund /  society.

Accord ing to the in form ation and explanations given 
to us, the Com pany is not dealing or trading in shares, 
securities, debentures, and other investments.

Accord ing to the in form ation and explanations given 
to us, the Com pany has not given any guarantee for 
loans taken by others from banks or financial institutions.

In our op in ion  and according to the in form ation and 
explanations given to us, the term loans taken by the 
com pany have been applied for the purpose for w h ich  
they were raised.

xv ii. Accord ing to the inform ation and explanations given 
to us and on an overall exam ination o fthe  balance sheet

xv.

X V I.

o f the Company, we are o f  the op in ion  that the funds 
raised on short-term basis estimated at Rs. 104,494,700  
have been used fo r long-term  purposes.

xv iii. The Com pany has not made any preferential a llotm ent 
o f shares to companies /  firms /  parties covered in the 
register maintained under Section 301 of the Companies 
Act, 1956.

X IX .

XX.

The Com pany did  not have any outstanding debentures 
during the year.

The Company has not raised any money by public issues 
during the year.

xxi. Accord ing to the in form ation and explanations given 
to  us, no fraud on or by the Com pany has been noticed 
or reported during the course o f our audit.

For B S R and Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration No. -  128510W

Zubin Shekary
Partner
M embership No.; 048814



BALANCE SHEET AS AT M A R C H  31, 2012
(A ll am ounts are in Ind ian Rupees, excep t share data o r as stated)

Notes AS AT 
March 31, 2012

AS AT 
March 31,2011

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Shareholders' Funds
Share capital 3 106,200,000 106,200,000

Reserves and surplus 4 644,747,385 1,044,584,080

Non-Current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 5 - 9,162,609

Long-term provisions 6 10,076,365 7,729,210

Current liabilities
Short-term borrow ings 7 521,463,783 57,993,423

Trade payables 8 369,752,388 257,830,574

O ther current liab ilities 9 96,414,831 97,412,499

Short-term provisions 10 11,285,336 11,316,183

Total

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Fixed assets

1,759,940,088 1,592,228,578

Tangible assets 11 774,490,394 762,118,462

Intangible assets 12 6,409,531 3,903,406

Capital work-in-progress 12,442,552 46,954,768

Long-term loans and advances 13 8,938,301 8,809,364

O ther non-current assets 14 53,461,307 53,193,322

Current assets
Current investments 15 - 14,400

Inventories 16 256,361,316 264,876,077

Trade receivables 17 340,978,425 286,741,147

Cash and bank balances 18 36,314,724 13,306,721

Short-term loans and advances 19 245,995,968 149,095,178

O ther current assets 20 24,547,570 3,215,733

Total

Significant accounting po lic ies 2 

The notes referred to above form  an intergral part o f the balance sheet.

1,759,940,088 1,592,228,578

This is the balance sheet referred to in our report o f even date.
for B S R and Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration N o .l 2 8 5 10W

Zubin Shekary
Partner
Membership No.048814

For and on behalf o f the Board o f Directors of 
Indo Tech Transformers Limited

Luis Carlos Silveyra
Chairman

Jorge Lozano
Director

Manuel Hernandez Bravo
Manager

D Alwan
Chief Financial O fficer



STATEMENT O F PROFIT A N D  LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED M A R C H  31, 2012
(A ll am ounts are in Ind ian Rupees, excep t share data o r as stated)

Notes Year ended 
March 31, 2012

Year ended 
March 31, 2011

REVENUE
Revenue from  operations, gross 21 1,250,421,398 1,227,138,102

Less; Excise duty 103,559,726 98,877,739

Revenue from  operations, net 1,146,861,672 1,128,260,363

O ther incom e 22 10,298,868 14,537,707

Total revenue 1,157,160,540 1,142,798,070

EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 23 1,078,348,982 986,792,885

Changes in inventories o f finished goods and work-in-progress 24 (42,699,595) (52,245,052)

Employee benefits expense 25 152,554,195 165,536,311

O ther expenses 26 280,012,564 228,773,444

Total expenses 1,468,216,146 1,328,857,588

Loss before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation and 
prior period item (311,055,606) (186,059,518)
Depreciation and am ortization expense 11 and 12 41,171,608 37,998,562

Finance costs 27 47,609,481 15,174,457

Loss before tax and prior period item (399,836,695) (239,232,537)
Prior period item 29 - 1,500,000

Loss before tax (399,836,695) (237,732,537)

Tax expense:
-  Current tax 2,226,231

-  Deferred tax charge /  (credit) - (12,517,791)

Total tax expense - (10,291,560)

Loss for the period (399,836,695) (227,440,977)

Earnings per equity share:
- Basic (37.65) (21.42)

- D iluted (37.65) (21.42)

W eighted average num ber o f equity shares outstanding during the year 10,620,000 10,620,000

Nom inal value of equity shares (Rs) 10 10

Significant accounting po lic ies 2

The notes referred to above form  an intergral part of the statement of p ro fit and loss.

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to
in our report o f even date.
fo r B S R and Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration N o . l2851 OW

Zubin Shekary
Partner
Membership No.048814

For and on behalf o f the Board of Directors of 
Indo Tech Transformers Limited

Luis Carlos Silveyra
Chairman

Jorge Lozano
Director

Manuel Hernandez Bravo
Manager

D Alwan
Chief Financial O fficer



Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31,2012
(A ll am ounts are in In d ia n  Rupees, exce p t share data a n d  as stated)

Notes Year ended 
March 31, 2012

Year ended 

March 31, 2011

Cash Flow from Operating activities
Loss before tax and prio r period items

Adjustments for:

Depreciation /  am ortization 

Loss on sale o f fixed assets 

Assets w ritten o ff 

Bad debts w ritten off 

Provision for doubtfu l debts 

Profit on sale o f investments 

Interest incom e

Foreign exchange (gain) /  loss, net (unrealised)

Liabilities /  provisions no longer required w ritten back 

D iv idend income 

Finance costs

Operating Loss before working capital changes

Adjustments for:

(Increase) /  decrease in inventories 

(Increase) /  decrease in trade receivables

(Increase) /  decrease in loans and advances and other current assets 

Increase/ (decrease) in other current liab ilities and provisions

Cash generated from operations

Taxes paid

Net cash (used in) /  from operating activities

Cash Flow from Investing activities

Purchase o f fixed assets

Sale o f fixed assets

Sale o f investments

Interest incom e received

D iv idend incom e received

Net cash (used in) /  from investing activities

(A)

(B)

(399,836,695)

41,171,608

285,901

535,947

2,730,374

31,393,001

(68,516)

(4,557,786)

5,881,801

(2,281,721)

47,609,481

122,700,090

(277,136,605)

8,514,761

(85,370,327)

(114,482,385)

151,338,407

(317,136,149)

479,588

(317,615,737)

(23,572,295)

1,212,998

82,916

1,158,195

(21,118,186)

(239,232,537)

37,998,562

1,260,196

3,029,979

13,640,497

(9,825,393)

(862,076)

(1,935,472)

(367,633)

15,174,457

58,113,117

(181,119,420)

(46,906,260)

(22,056,824)

(30,082,817)

71,915,345

(208,249,976)

1,097,302

(209,347,278)

(59,858,328)

1,617,308

14,061,920

11,632,253

367,633

(32,179,214)



Notes Year ended 
March 31, 2012

Year ended 

March 31, 2011

Cash Flow from Financing activities

Increase /  (decrease) in loans from  banks, net 417,818,619 13,141,155

Increase /  (decrease) in secured loans for finance lease, net (3,500,568) (3,500,568)

Repayment o f sales tax deferral loan (5,261,569) -

Finance costs (47,046,571) (15,026,816)

Net cash (used in) /  fro m  financing activities (C) 362,009,911 (5,386,229)

Net lncrease/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents/margin money (A+B+C) 23,275,988 (246,912,721)

Cash and cash equivalents/margin m oney at the beginning o f the year 66,500,043 313,412,764

Cash and cash equivalents/margin money at the end of the year 89,776,031 66,500,043

Cash and cash equivalents/margin m oney include the fo llow ing , 

w h ich  in v iew  o f the management are restricted in nature:

- margin m oney account 14 53,461,307 53,193,322

- monies held in trust 46 13,538,076 -

- unpaid d iv idend account 645,611 656,587

Significant accounting polic ies 2 

The notes referred to above form  an intergral part o f the cash f lo w  statement.

This is the cash f lo w  statement referred to in our report of even date.

for B S R and Co
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration N o . l2851 OW

Zubin Shekary
Partner
Membership No.048814

Place : Bangalore 

Date : M ay 14, 2012

For and on behalf of the Board of D irectors of 

Indo Tech Transformers Lim ited

Luis Carlos Silveyra
Chairman

Manuel Hernandez Bravo
Manager

N Nambi Rajan
Financial C ontro ller & Company Secretary 

Place : Chennai 

Date : M ay 14, 2012

Jorge Lozano
Director 

D Alwan
C hief Financial O fficer



Notes to financial statements for the year ended M arch 31, 2012
(A ll am ounts are in Ind ian Rupees, excep t share data o r as stated)

1 BACKGROUND

In d o  Tech T rans fo rm e rs  L im ite d  ( 'In d o  T ech ' /
'th e  C o m p a n y ')  is engaged in th e  bus iness o f 
m an u fac tu ring  po w e r and d is tr ib u tio n  transform ers 
and various special app lica tion  transformers, m ob ile  
s u b -s ta t io n  tra n s fo rm e rs  and s u b -s ta tio n s . The 
C om pany has fou r m an u fac tu ring  plants located at 
Palakkad in Kerala and Chennai and Kancheepuram 
in Tamil Nadu.

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

a Basis of preparation of financial statements

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the revised 
schedule VI no tified under the Companies Act, 1956 
has be com e  a p p lic a b le  to  the  C o m pany, fo r  
p re p a ra tio n  and p re s e n ta tio n  o f its f in a n c ia l 
statements. The revised schedule VI does not impact 
recognition and measurement principles fo llow ed for 
preparation o f financia l statements. However, it has 
significant im pact on presentation and disclosures 
made in the financia l statements. The Com pany has 
a lso re c la s s if ie d  th e  p re v io u s  year f ig u re s  in 
accordance w ith  the requirements applicable in the 
current year.

The financia l statements are prepared and presented 
in accordance w ith  Ind ian  G enera lly  Accepted 
Accounting Principles (GAAP) under the historical 
cos t c o n v e n tio n  on the  a cc ru a l basis. G AAP 
com prises acco un ting  standards no tified  by the 
Central Governm ent o f India under Section 211 (3C) 
of the Companies Act, 1956, other pronouncements 
o f the Institute o f Chartered Accountants of India, 
the provis ions o f the Com panies Act, 1956 and 
guidelines issued by Securities and Exchange Board 
o f India.

b Use of estimates

The p re p a ra t io n  o f f in a n c ia l s ta tem e n ts  in 
co n fo rm ity  w ith  GAAP requires m anagem ent to 
m ake es tim a te s  and a s s u m p tio n s  th a t a ffe c t 
the  reported  am ounts o f assets and lia b ilit ie s , 
disclosure o f contingent assets and liab ilities at the 
date o f the financ ia l statements and the reported 
amounts o f revenues and expenses during the period 
reported . A ctua l results co u ld  d iffe r from  these 
estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is 

recognized prospectively in the current and future 
periods.

c Revenue recognition

Revenue from  sale o f goods is recognized upon 
transfe r o f a ll s ig n if ic a n t risks and rew ards o f 
ownership to the buyer w h ich  generally corresponds 
w ith  the  d is p a tc h /d e liv e ry  o f goods to  buyers 

based on the terms o f the contract. The am ount 
recognized as sale is exclusive of sales tax and trade 
discounts.

Service incom e is recognized as the services are 
rendered on an accrual basis in accordance w ith  the 
terms o f the relevant contract.

D iv id e n d  in c o m e  is re c o g n iz e d  w h e n  the  
u n c o n d it io n a l r ig h t to  rece ive  the  paym en t is 
established.

Interest incom e on deposits and interest bearing 
securities is recognized on a tim e proportionate basis.

d Fixed assets

Fixed Assets are stated at cost o f acquis ition less 
accumulated depreciation. The cost o f fixed assets 
includes freight, duties and taxes and other incidental 
expenses related to the acqu is ition , but exclude 
duties and taxes that are recoverable subsequently 
fro m  tax a u th o ritie s . B o rro w in g  costs d ire c t ly  
attributable to acquisition of those fixed assets w h ich  
necessarily take a substantial period o f tim e to get 
ready for the ir intended use are capitalized.

Capital work-in-progress includes the cost o f fixed 
assets that are not ready for its intended use and 
cost o f assets not put to  use before the balance 

sheet date.

e Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on the straight line method 
at the rates o f depreciation prescribed in Schedule 
XIV to the Companies Act, 1956. If the management's 
estimate o f the useful life o f a fixed asset at the tim e 
of acquisition of the asset or o fth e  rem aining useful 
life  on a subsequent review  is shorter than that 
envisaged in the aforesaid Schedule, depreciation is 
provided at a higher rate based on the management's 
estim ate o f the useful life /rem a in ing  useful life. 
Pursuant to this policy, based on the estimated useful 
life  o f the assets, depreciation is provided at the 
fo llo w in g  rates w h ic h  corresponds to the rates 
prescribed in Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 
1956.



Fixed Assets

Buildings

Plant and m achinery

O ffice equipm ent

Computer and accessories

Furnitures and fixtures

Vehicle

Useful lives

30-60

13-21

21

16

10-14

Assets costing less than Rs. 5,000 are depreciated @ 
100% in the year o f purchase.

Intangible assets and amortisation

Intangible assets are recorded at the consideration 
paid for acquisition. Intangible assets are amortized 
over the ir estim ated econom ic  useful lives on a 
straight line basis commencing from the date the asset 
is available for its use. The management estimates 
the useful lives for the intangible asset (software) at 
5 years.

f  Leases

Assets taken on lease where the Company acquires 
substantially the entire risks and rewards incidental 
to ownership are classified as finance leases. The 
amount recorded is the lesser o f the present value of 
the m in im u m  lease rental and o ther in c ide n ta l 
expenses during the lease term or the asset's fair value. 

The rental obligations, net o f interest charges, are 
reflected in secured loan. Leases that do not transfer 
substantially all of the risks and rewards o f ownership 
are classified as operating leases and recorded as 
expenses as and when payments are made on a 
straight line basis over the lease term.

g Impairment

The Com pany assesses at each balance sheet date 
whether there is any ind ica tion that an asset may be 

impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company 
estimates the recoverable am ount (higher o f net 
realizable value and value in use) of the asset. If such 
recoverable am ount o f the asset or the recoverable 
amount o f the cash generating un it to w h ich  the asset 
belongs is less than the carrying amount, the carrying 
am ount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The 
reduction is treated as an im pairm ent loss and is 
recognized in the pro fit and loss account. If at the 
ba lance sheet date there is an in d ica tio n  tha t a 
previously assessed im pairm ent loss no longer exists, 
the recoverable am ount is reassessed and the asset

is reflected at the recoverable amount subject to a 
m axim um  o f depreciable historical cost.

h Investments

Long-term investments are stated at cost less any 
o th e r- th a n - te m p o ra ry  d im in u t io n  in v a lu e , 
d e te rm in e d  se p a ra te ly  fo r  each in d iv id u a l 
investment. Current investments are carried at the 
lower o f cost and fa ir value.

i Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower o f cost and net 
realizable value. Cost o f inveritories comprises all 
cost o f purchase, cost o f conversion and other costs 
incurred in bring ing the inventories to the ir present 
location and condition. Cost includes all taxes and 
du ties , bu t exc ludes du ties  and taxes tha t are 
subsequently recoverable from  tax authorities.

T he m e tho ds  o f d e te rm in in g  cost o f va riou s  
categories o f inventories are as fo llows:

Description Method of determining cost

Raw materials W eighted average

Stores and spares W eighted average

W ork in progress 
and finished 
goods

W e ig h te d  ave rage and 
in c lu d in g  an a p p ro p r ia te  
share o f production overheads

Finished goods W e ig h te d  ave rage and 
inc lud ing an appropriate share 
of production overheads (excise 
d u ty  in resp ec t o f c lo s in g  
inventory o f finished goods is 
included as part of inventory)

j Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the 
exchange  rates p re v a ilin g  on the  date o f the 
tra n s a c tio n s . M o n e ta ry  assets and l ia b i l i t ie s  
denom inated in foreign currencies as at the balance 
sheet date are translated at the closing exchange rates 
on that date. Fxchange differences arising on foreign 

exchange transactions d u rin g  the year and on 
restatement o f m onetary assets and liab ilities  are 
recognized in the pro fit and loss account o f the year.

Prem ium  or d iscount aris ing at the incep tion  of 
forward exchange contracts is am ortized as expense 
or incom e over the life o f the contract. Any profit or 
loss arising on the cancellation or renewal of forward 
contracts is recognized as incom e or as expense for 
the pe riod . In re la tion  to  the fo rw ard  contracts 
entered in to to hedge the foreign currency risk o f the



underly ing outstanding at the balance sheet date, 
the  e xch an ge  d iffe re n c e  is c a lc u la te d  as the  
difference between the foreign currency am ount of 
the contract translated at the exchange rate at the 
reporting date, o r the settlement date where the 
transaction is settled during the reporting period, and 
th e  c o rre s p o n d in g  fo re ig n  c u rre n c y  a m o u n t 
translated at the later o f the date o f inception o f the 

forw ard exchange contract and the last reporting 
date. Such exchange differences are recognized in 
the pro fit and loss account in the reporting period 
in w h ich  the exchange rates change.

In a c c o rd a n c e  w ith  th e  a n n o u n c e m e n t o f 
"A ccounting  for Derivatives" made by the Institute 
o f C harte red  A cco u n ta n ts  o f Ind ia  { 'IC A I')  on 
29 M arch 2008, derivatives are marked to market 
and the changes in the value o f such derivatives are 
recognized in pro fit or loss account.

k Employee benefits

Provisions for /  contribu tions to  retirement benefits 
scheme are made as fo llows:

Defined con tribu tion  pian

Provident fund: Eligible employees receive benefits 
fro m  the  p ro v id e n t fu n d , w h ic h  is a d e fin e d  
c o n tr ib u tio n  p lan . Both the  em p loyee  and the 
C o m pa ny  m ake m o n th ly  c o n tr ib u tio n s  to  the  

provident fund plan equal to a specified percentage 
o fthe  covered employee's basic salary. The Company 
has no further ob ligations under the plan beyond its 
m onth ly  contributions. The Company's contribu tion 
to the Employees' Provident Fund scheme maintained 
by the Central Covernm ent is charged to the profit 

and loss account.

Super annuation fund: Eligible employees receive 
benefits from  the super annuation fund, w h ich  is a 
de fined co n trib u tio n  p lan. The C om pany makes 
annual con tribu tions to the super annuation fund 
plan equal to a specified percentage o f the covered 
employee's basic salary. The Company has no further 
o b lig a t io n s  u n d e r the  p lan  b e yon d  its ye a rly  
contribu tions. The Company's con tribu tion  to the 
super annuation fund scheme maintained by the Life 
Insurance Corporation o f India ('LIC') is charged to 

the pro fit and loss account.

D efined benefit p ian

Compensated absences: Provision fo r long term  
compensated absences is made on the basis o f an 
actuaria l va lua tion  as at the ba lance sheet date

carried out by an independent actuary as at March 
31 each year. Provision for short term compensated 

absences is made on actual basis.

Gratuity: The C om pany provides fo r gratu ity, a 
defined benefit retirement Plan (the "C ra tu ity  Plan") 
covering e lig ib le  employees. The Plan provides 
payment to vested employees at retirement, death 
or term ination o f em ploym ent, o f an am ount based 
on the.respective employee's salary and the tenure 
o f em ploym ent w ith  the Company. The Company 
p ro v id e s  th e  g ra tu ity  b e n e fit  th ro u g h  an nu a l 
con tribu tion  to a fund managed by the LIC. Under 
this scheme the settlement ob ligation remains w ith  
the C om pany a lthough  the LIC adm in isters the 

scheme and determines the con tribu tion  prem ium  
required to  be paid by the Company. L iab ilities  
re lated to  the C ra tu ity  Plan are de term ined by 
actuarial valuation done by an independent actuary 
using projected un it cred it method as at March 31 
each year.

A c tu a r ia l ga ins and losses in respect o f post 
em p lo y m e n t and o th e r lo ng -te rm  bene fits  are 
charged to the Statement Profit and Loss.

I Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is com puted by d iv id ing  
net p ro fit or loss fo r the period attributable to equity 
shareholders by the weighted average num ber of 
shares outstanding during the year. D iluted earnings 
per share amounts are com puted after adjusting the 
effects o f all d ilu tive  potentia l equ ity  shares. The 
number o f shares used in com puting diluted earnings 
per share comprises the weighted average number 
o f shares considered for deriving basic earnings per 
share, and also the weighted average num ber of 
equity shares, w h ich  could have been issued on the 
conversion of all d ilu tive potential shares. The diluted 
potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds 
receivable, had the shares been actually issued at 
fa ir va lue  (i.e. the average m arket va lue o f the 
outstanding shares). D ilu tive  potential equity shares 
are deemed converted as of the beginning of the 
period, unless issued at a later date.

m Taxation

Incom e-tax  expense com p rise  cu rre n t tax (i.e. 
a m o u n t o f tax  fo r  the  p e r io d  d e te rm in e d  in 
accordance w ith  the incom e-tax law) and deferred 
tax charge or credit (reflecting that tax effects o f tim ing 
differences between accounting incom e and taxable 
incom e for the period).



The d e fe rre d  ta x  cha rge  o r c re d it  and the  
corresponding deferred tax liab ilities or assets are 
recognized using the tax rates and tax laws that have 
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance 
sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognized on ly 
to the extent there is a reasonable certainty that the 
assets can be realized in future; however, where there 
is unabsorbed depreciation or carried forward loss 
u n d e r ta x a tio n  law s, d e fe rre d  tax  assets are 
recognized o n ly  if there is a v irtua l certa in ty  of 
realization o f such assets. Deferred tax assets are 
reviewed as at the balance sheet date and w ritten 
dow n or w ritten  up to reflect the am ount that is 
reasonably/virtually certain (as the case may be) to 
be realized. Current tax and deferred tax assets and 
lia b ilit ie s  are offset to  the  extent to  w h ic h  the 
Com pany has a legally enforceable right to set o ff 
and they relate to taxes on income levied by the same 
governing taxation laws.

n Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent 
assets

The C om pany creates a provis ion w hen there is 
present o b lig a tio n  as a result o f past event that 

p robab ly requires an o u tflo w  o f resources and a 
reliable estimate can be made o f the am ount of the 
ob ligation. A  disclosure fo r a contingent liab ility  is 
made when there is a possible ob ligation or a present 
ob liga tion  that may, but probably w ill not, require 
an ou tflow  o f resources. W here there is a possible

obligation or a present ob ligation in respect o f w h ich 
the like lihood  o f ou tflow  o f resources is remote, no 
provision or disclosure is made. Contingent assets 
are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial 
statements.

o Cash flow statements

Cash flow s are reported using the ind irect method, 
whereby pro fit before tax is adjusted for the effects 

of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals 
o r accrua ls  o f past o r fu tu re  cash rece ip ts  or 
payments. The cash flow s from  regular revenue 
generating, financing and investing activities o f the 
Com pany are segregated. Cash flow s in foreign 
cu rre n c ie s  are a cco un te d  at average m o n th ly  
exchange rates that approxim ate the actual rates of 
exchange prevailing at the dates o f the transactions.

p Measurement of EBITDA

As perm itted by the guidance note on the Revised 
S chedu le  VI to  the  C om panies A ct, 1956 , the 
Com pany has elected to present earnings before 
interest, tax, depreciation and am ortization (EBITDA) 

as a separate line item on the face o f the statement 
o f p ro fit and loss. The Company measures EBITDA 
on th e  basis o f p ro fit/d o s s )  fro m  c o n t in u in g  
operations. In its measurement, the Company does 
not include depreciation and am ortization expense, 
finance cost and tax expense.



Notes to financial statements for the year ended M arch 31, 2012
(A ll am ounts are in Ind ian Rupees, excep t share data o r as stated)

3 SHARE CAPITAL

a The details of authorised, issued, subscribed and paid up share capital is as under:

Particulars As at
March 31, 2012

As at
March 31, 2011

Authorised
15,300,000 (March 31, 2011: 15,300,000) Equity Shares o f Rs.lO each 153,000,000 153,000,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up

10,620,000 (March 31, 2011: 10,620,000) Equity Shares o f Rs.l 0 each 106,200,000 106,200,000

b Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year is as under:

Particulars As at As at As at As at

March 31, 2012 March 31, 2012 M arch 31, 2011 March 31, 2011

(No. ot shares) (Rs.) (No. o f shares) (Rs.)

Balance at the beginning o f the year 10,620,000 106,200,000 10,620,000 106,200,000

Add: Shares issued during the year - - - -

Less: Shares bought back during the year - - - -

Balance at the end o f the year 10,620,000 106,200,000 10,620,000 106,200,000

c Terms /  rights attached to equity shares
The Com pany has on ly  one class o f shares referred to as equity shares having a par value o f Rs.lO. Each holder of 
equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares d iv idend in Indian Rupees and pays d iv idend to 
shareholders outside India in foreign currency based on the rates prevailing on the date o f such remittances, w ith  
respect to other shareholders, d iv idend is paid in Indian Rupees.

In the event o f liqu ida tion  o f the Company, the holders of equity shares w ill be entitled to receive rem aining assets of 
the Company, after d istribu tion o f all preferential amounts. The d istribu tion w ill be in proportion to the number of 
equity shares held by the shareholders. During the year ended March 31, 2012, the Company has not declared any 
d iv idend.

d Shares held by holding company and /  or their subsidiaries /  associates

Particulars As at
March 31, 2012

As at
March 31, 2011

7,895,625 equity shares (March 31, 2011: 7,895,625 shares) held by 
Prolec CE Internacional S de R.L. C.V., M exico, the ho ld ing com pany 
('Prolec C E '/'ho ld ing  Com pany') 78,956,250 78,956,250

e Details ot shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% ot the aggregate shares in the Company
Particulars As at

March 31, 2012
As at

March 31, 2011

Equity shares ot Rs. 10 each fully paid
Prolec CE Internacional S de R.L. C.V., M exico, the ho ld ing com pany 

% o f ho ld ing in the class

7,895,625

74.35%

7,895,625

74.35%

t Shares allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares and pursuant to contracts without payment being received 
in cash

Particulars As at
March 31, 2012

As at
March 31, 2011*

Equity shares allotted as fu lly  paid up bonus shares Not applicable 4,597,950



Notes to financial statements for the year ended M arch 31, 2012
(A ll am ounts are in Ind ian  Rupees, excep t share data o r as stated)

4 RESERVES AND SURPLUS

Particulars As at
March 31, 2012

As at
March 31, 2011

Securities premium account
Balance at the beginning o f the year 375,848,190 375,848,190

Add: A dd itions during the year - -

Less: U tilisation during the year - -

Closing balance 375,848,190 375,848,190

Capital reserve
Balance at the beginning o f the year - 9,219,605

Add: Add itions during the year - -

Less: Adjustm ent relating to amalgamation in earlier period 
(Also refer note 28) 9,219,605

Closing balance - -

General reserve
Balance at the beginning o f the year 199,875,940 189,138,007

Add: Transfer from  capital reserve (Also refer note 28) - 9,219,605

Add: Transfer from  pro fit and loss account (Also refer note 28) - 1,518,328

Less: U tilisation during the year - -

Closing balance 199,875,940 199,875,940

State subsidy
Balance at the beginning o f the year - 1,500,000

Add: Add itions during the year - -

Less: Transfer to pro fit and loss account (Also refer note 29) - 1,500,000

Closing balance - -

Surplus in the statement of profit and loss
Balance at the beginning o f the year 468,859,950 697,819,255

Loss fo r the year (399,836,695) (227,440,977)

Less: Appropriations

Transfer to general reserve 1,518,328

Net surplus in the statement of profit and loss 69,023,255 468,859,950
Total 644,747,385 1,044,584,080



Notes to financial statements for the year ended M arch 31, 2012
(A ll am ounts are In Ind ian  Rupees, excep t share data o r as stated)

5 LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

Particulars As at
March 31, 2012

As at
M arch 31, 2011

Secured

Assets acquired under finance lease (Refer Note a below) 1,472,846

- 1,472,846
Unsecured

Sales tax deferral loan (Refer Note b below) 7,689,763

- 7,689,763

Total - 9,162,609

a) Assets acquired under finance lease are secured by hypothecation o f vehicles. The loan is repayable in 36 m onth ly 
instalments starting from  the date o f loan. The loans were taken in the month o f August 2009 and Novem ber 2009.

b) The sales tax deferral loan is repayable in the 10th year from  the date o f availm ent o f loan along w ith  the tax liab ility  
for the corresponding month. The last deferral payment shall be made in the financia l year ending March 31, 2013.

6 LONG-TERM PROVISIONS

Particulars As at
March 31,2012

As at
March 31, 2011

Provision for em ployee benefits:

Provision fo r gratuity (Refer note 44) 

Provision for compensated absences

O ther provisions (Refer note 49) 

Provision fo r warranty

Total

2,883,767

692,419
3,576,186

6.500.179

6.500.179

10,076,365

676.225

676.225

7.052.985

7.052.985

7,729,210

7 Short-term borrowings

Particulars As at
March 31, 2012

As at
March 31, 2011

Secured

W orking capital loans repayable on demand from  banks 
(Refer note a below)

Unsecured

Export preshipment cred it from  banks in foreign currency 

Eoreign currency loans from  banks

Total

188,946,533
332,517,250

521,463,783

57.993.423

57.993.423

521,463,783 57,993,423

a) Cash credit facilities are secured by pari passu first hypothecation charge over current assets (inventory, receivables 
and other current assets), first charge over the land and bu ild ing  at Thirum azhisai, equitable mortgage over land w ith  
electric generator at Radhapuram, equitable mortgage over land and bu ild ing  at Palakkad and second charge on pari 
passu basis w ith  Standard Chartered Bank, Bank o f Baroda and C itibank over all the present and future fixed assets, 
m achinery and equipments and 9.16 acres o f land at Kancheepuram etc.



Notes to financial statements for the year ended M arch 31, 2012
(A ll am ounts are in Ind ian  Rupees, excep t share data o r as stated)

8 TRADE PAYABLES

Particulars As at
March 31, 2012

As at
March 31, 2011

Payable to m icro and small enterprises (Also refer note 43) 

Payable to other creditors (Refer note 46)

Total
369,752,388 257,830,574

369,752,388 257,830,574

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Particulars As at
March 31, 2012

As at
March 31, 2011

Current m aturities o f long-term  debt

Sales tax deferral loan (Refer Note b in note 5) 

Term loans (Refer Note a below)

Current maturities o f finance lease obligations 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 

Unpaid d ividends (Refer Note b below)

Advance from  customers 

Employees benefits payable 

Forward contract payable, net 

O ther liab ilities 

Total

7,689,763

1,472,846
710,551
645,611

52,038,315
7,173,063

14,256,450
12,428,232

5,261,569

30,028,929

3,500,568

147,641

656,587

40,175,306

5,065,514

1,054,783

11,521,602

96,414,831 97,412,499

a) The term loans from  Standard Chartered Bank is secured by first charge on all the present and future fixed assets, 
m achinery and equipments and 9.16 acres o f land at Kancheepuram. The loan was repayable in 12 quarterly 
instalments starting from  August 2008 and July 2009.

b) There are no am ount due and outstanding to be credited to the Investor Education and Protection Eund.

10 SHORT-TERM PROVISIONS

Particulars As at
March 31, 2012

As at
M arch 31, 2011

Provision for em ployee benefits

- Provision for gratuity (Refer note 44)

- Provision for compensated absences 

O ther provisions (Refer Note 49)

- Provision for warranty

- Provision for others

Total

155,872

5,802,672
5,326,792

152,227

1,863,528

9,300,428

11,285,336 11,316,183
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended M arch 31, 2012
(A ll am ounts are In Ind ian  Rupees, excep t share data o r as stated)

12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Particulars Computer
software

Total

Gross Block
Balance as at April 1, 2010 4,044,932 4,044,932
Additions 1,566,240 1,566,240
Deletions /  w rite  o ff - -

Balance as at March 31, 2011 5,611,172 5,611,172
Additions 4,268,146 4,268,146
Deletions /  w rite  off - -

Balance as at March 31, 2012 9,879,318 9,879,318
Accum ulated am m ortization 
Balance as at A pril 1, 2010 823,257 823,257
Additions 884,509 884,509
Deletions /  w rite  o ff - -

Balance as at March 31, 2011 1,707,766 1,707,766
Additions 1,762,021 1,762,021
Deletions /  w rite  o ff - -

Balance as at March 31, 2012 3,469,787 3,469,787
Net Block
As at March 31, 2011 3,903,406 3,903,406
As at March 31, 2012 6,409,531 6,409,531

13 Long-term loans and advances

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2012 March 31, 2011

Unsecured, considered good

Deposits 8,938,301 8,809,364

Total 8,938,301 8,809,364

14 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Particulars As at
March 31, 2012

As at
March 31, 2011

M argin m oney deposit (Refer Note a below) 

Total

53,461,307 53,193,322

53,461,307 53,193,322

a) Held as lien by bank against bank guarantee and letter o f credit.

15 CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Particulars As at
March 31, 2012

As at
March 31, 2011

A t cost:

Current portion of long-term investments (trade, quoted)

- N il equity shares (March 31, 2011: 600 equity shares) of 
Indian Overseas Bank o f Rs. 10 each, fu lly  paid up

Total

Aggregate market value ot quoted investments

- 14,400

- 14,400

- 86,160
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16 INVENTORIES

Particulars As at
March 31, 2012

As at
March 31, 2011

Raw material and components 39,773,141 97,010,210

W ork in progress 166,625,825 167,993,573

Finished goods* 49,485,967 -

Stores and consumables 2,918,383 3,772,294

Total 258,803,316 268,776,077

Less: Provision for inventory (2,442,000) (3,900,000)

Total 256,361,316 264,876,077

* Includes stock in transit o f finished goods am ounting to Rs.49,4'85,967 (March 31, 2011 - Rs. N il) 

17 Trade receivables

Particulars As at
March 31, 2012

As at
M arch 31, 2011

Unsecured:

Debts outstanding for a period exceeding six months from  the date they
became due for payment

- considered good 131,844,360 30,694,081

- considered doubtfu l 57,585,067 36,164,987

189,429,427 66,859,068

O ther debts

- considered good 209,134,065 256,047,066

- considered doubtfu l 9,069,589 2,917,160

218,203,654 258,964,226

Total 407,633,081 325,823,294

Less: Provision for doubtfu l debts (66,654,656) (39,082,147)

Total 340,978,425 286,741,147

18 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Particulars As at
March 31, 2012

As at
March 31, 2011

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash in hand 

Cheques in hand 

Bank balances

- in current accounts (inc lud ing monies held in trust) (Also refer note 46)

- in cash credit accounts

Total

62,204

49,000

17,134,827

19,068,693

32,717

49,325

5,322,530

7,902,149

36,314,724 13,306,721
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19 SHORT-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Particulars As at
March 31, 2012

As at
March 31, 2011

Unsecured, considered good

Advance incom e tax (net o f provisions of Rs. 366,076,231) 
(March 31, 2011: Rs. 366,624,452)

Receivable from  the ho ld ing com pany (Refer note 47)

Prepaid expenses

Balance in Cenvat accounts, VAT Credits and Service tax credits 

Deposits 
Staff advances 

Advance to suppliers 

Others 

Total

28,443,784
94,140,837

5,545,446
95,414,065

4,813,000
1,914,824
9,373,858
6,350,154

27,964,196

4,625,530

83,038,523

10,330,000
2,069,733

16,456,481

4,610,715

245,995,968 149,095,178

20 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Particulars As at
March 31, 2012

As at
March 31, 2011

Unsecured, considered good

- Interest accrued on deposits

- U nb illed  revenue
- Unamortised prem ium  on forward contract 

Total

6,065,086
581,111

17,901,373

2,665,495

550,238

24,547,570 3,215,733

21 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2012

Year ended 
March 31, 2011

Sale

- M anufactured products 1,218,675,601 1,198,115,323

- Services 19,923,460 6,848,055

O ther operating revenues

- Scrap sales 11,822,337 22,174,724

1,250,421,398 1,227,138,102

Less: Excise duty 103,559,726 98,877,739

Total * 1,146,861,672 1,128,260,363

22 OTHER INCOME

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2012

Year ended 
■March 31, 2011

Interest incom e

Income from  power generation 

D iv idend income

Net gain /  loss on sale of investments

Liab ilities /  provisions no longer required w ritten back

M iscellaneous income

Total

4,557,786
2,649,767

68,516
2,281,721

741,078

9,825,393

1,578,101

367,633

1,935,472

831,108

10,298,868 14,537,707
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23 COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

Particulars Year ended 
March 31,2012

Year ended 
March 31, 2011

O pening stock o f raw materials 

Add: Purchases

Less: C losing stock o f raw materials 

Cost of raw materials consumed

100,782,504

1,020,258,002

106,521,296

981,054,093

1,121,040,506

42,691,524

1,087,575,389

100,782,504

1,078,348,982 986,792,885

24 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND WORK-IN-PROGRESS

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2012

Year ended 
M arch 31, 2011

O pening stock

- Finished goods - 2,684,144

- W ork-in-progress 167,993,573 113,064,377

167,993,573 115,748,521

Less: C losing stock

- Finished goods 49,485,967 -

- W ork-in-progress 166,625,825 167,993,573

216,111,792 167,993,573

M ovem ent in excise duty (5,418,624) -

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress (42,699,595) (52,245,052)

25 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2012

Year ended 
M arch 31, 2011

Salaries and wages

C ontribution to provident and other funds

Staff welfare expenses

Total

126,957,134

14,307,137

11,289,924

139,937,531

12,419,139

13,179,641

152,554,195 165,536,311
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26 OTHER EXPENSES

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2012

Year ended 

March 31, 2011

Rent 139,550 9,603,851

Rates and taxes 5,673,581 4,523,124

Power and fuel 22,370,801 19,663,775

Repairs and maintenance:

- Buildings 9,111,754 9,941,928

- Plant and m achinery 3,653,065 1,924,605

- Others 2,178,905 2,030,272

Contract labour 8,858,208 8,469,746

Factory expenses 11,439,701 3,583,829

Insurance 2,799,572 1,767,689

Printing and stationery 2,806,569 3,408,234

Travelling and conveyance 14,587,766 17,496,793

Com m unication expenses 3,022,552 3,253,332

Professional and legal charges (Refer note 32) 32,454,713 27,636,652

D irector's Sitting fees 320,000 460,000

Advertisem ent and sales prom otion 1,799,633 10,323,903

Agency commission 41,036,534 47,983,264

Freight outward 32,057,207 12,586,672

Royalty and trade mark fees 28,441,126 13,164,932

Loss on sale o f fixed assets 285,901 1,260,196

Assets w ritten off 535,947 -

Bad debts w ritten off 2,730,374 3,029,979

Provision for doubtfu l debts 31,393,001 13,640,497

Foreign exchange loss, net 12,314,240 2,700,648

Provision fo r warranty (Refer note 49) 3,405,658 4,011,513

General expenses 6,596,206 6,308,010

Total 280,012,564 228,773,444

27 FINANCE COSTS

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2012

Year ended 
March 31, 2011

Interest expense 36,817,168 7,279,617

Bank charges 10,792,313 7,894,840

Total 47,609,481 15,174,457
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28 AMALGAMATION OF IN D O  TECH ELECTRIC COMPANY LIMITED ('ITECL' /  'TRANSFEROR') WITH THE COMPANY

Pursuant to a scheme o f amalgamation approved by the H on 'b le  High Court o f Madras on September 30, 2005. ITECL was 
amalgamated w ith  the Com pany w ith  effect from  A pril 1, 2003. The amalgamation was accounted under the purchase 
m ethod in the earlier year. During the previous year, the management has noted that the sanctioned scheme qualified to 
be given effect as amalgamation in the nature o f merger and accordingly, such amalgamation should have been accounted 
in accordance w ith  the 'poo ling  o f interest m ethod' prescribed by AS -  14. Necessary accounting effect was given in the 
financial statements for the previous year under the 'poo ling  o f interest m ethod' instead of 'purchase method'. Consequently, 
general reserve was increased by Rs. 10,737,933 w ith  a corresponding effect to Capital Reserve and pro fit and loss 
account fo r Rs. 9,219,605 and Rs. 1,518,328 respectively in the previous year ended March 31, 2011.

29 STATE SUBSIDY

D uring the financia l year 1998-99, the Com pany had received a Governm ent Grant o f Rs. 1,500,000 as investment 
subsidy towards setting up a Power Transformer plant at its Thirumazhisai factory in SIDCO Industrial Estate, Chennai. 
The Com pany had adopted the capital approach prescribed under Accounting Standard- 12 (AS - 12) 'A ccounting for 
Governm ent Grants' and had accounted the grant as 'State Subsidy' under 'Reserves and Surplus.

Management noted that as the grant was received towards plant and machinery, the grant should have been treated as 
deferred incom e to be recognized in the statement o f p ro fit and loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful 
life o f the asset as prescribed by 'incom e approach' in AS -  12. Since the estimated useful life had expired in an earlier 
period the subsidy am ount was transferred to statement o f p ro fit and loss as a prio r period item in the previous year ended 
M arch 31, 2011.

30 LAND AND BUILDING

a) The Com pany is in the process o f registering land measuring 0.132 acres and DP-36 land at SIDCO Industrial Estate, 
Thirum azhisai Chennai.

b) During the previous year, in respect o f bu ild ing  at N IDA, Kanjikode am ounting to Rs. 2,518,083 a M em orandum  o f 
understanding was entered to transfer the bu ild ing. The Com pany is in the process o f getting the refund of the balance 
land cost o f Rs. 67,279, after adjustments for certain interest costs.

31 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2012

Year ended 
M arch 31, 2011

(i) Estimated am ount of contracts rem aining to be executed on 
capital account (net o f capital advances) and not provided for

(ii) Com m itm ents in respect o f Bank guarantees and Letters o f credit 
issued by Com pany's bankers

(iii) Penalty levied by jo in t D irector General o f Foreign Trade, 
Chennai (JDCFT)

(iv) Disputed Sales Tax /  Income Tax /  Service Tax /  Labour case 
(Also refer Note b and c)

253,280 

371,267,421 

Refer Note a below 

36,613,305

1,515,366 

486,660,686 

Refer Note a be low  

36,613,305

Notes:
a Export ob ligations - A demand o f Rs. 29 ,395 ,120 was raised in an earlier year, by JDCFT, Chennai towards 

non-com pliance of certain export ob ligation. The Com pany has made a provision o f Rs. 7,500,000 towards this 
demand, o f w h ich , Rs. 3,973,636 was paid during the year. Any liab ility  in excess o f the provision w ill be met by the 
ex-promoters to the benefit o f the Company.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended M arch 31, 2012
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b Income tax - The Com pany has received incom e-tax assessment orders raising demand o f Rs. 7 ,487,550 for 
AY 2009-10 during the year and Rs. 3,669,549 and Rs. 5,129,608 for AY 2005-06 and AY 2008-09 respectively 
in the earlier period. Any liab ility  in respect o f these orders w ill be met by the ex-promoters to the benefit of 
the Company.

c Sales tax - During the year, the Company has received sales tax assessment orders raising demand o f Rs. 1,420,332 
and Rs. 1,441,276 for FY 2005-06 and FY 2006-07 respectively. The Com pany has provided Rs. 383,528 in the 
books and has also paid Rs. 2 ,500,000 (under protest) against these orders. Any liab ility  in respect o fthese orders 
w ill be met by the ex-promoters to the benefit o f the Company.

32 PAYMENT TO AUDITORS, EXCLUDING SERVICE TAX

Particulars Year ended 
March 31,2012

Year ended 
March 31, 2011

Statutory audit 1,100,000 700,000

Tax audit and other services 850,000 575,000

O ut o f pocket expenses 190,500 97,081

Total 2,140,500 1,372,081

A DETAILS OF INVENTORY OF RAW MATERIAL, COMPONENTS, STORES AND CONSUMABLES

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2012

Year ended 
March 31, 2011

CRCO lam ination 3,716,979 41,993,631

Copper 10,415,939 13,751,655

O il 6,303,162 10,936,409

MS items 1,154,154 1,039,829

Others 21,101,290 33,060,980

Total 42,691,524 100,782,504

b Details of inventory of work-in-progress

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2012

Year ended 
March 31, 2011

Transformers under production 166,625,825 167,993,573

Total 166,625,825 167,993,573

c Details of inventory of finished goods

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2012

Year ended 
March 31, 2011

Transformers 49,485,967 -

Total 49,485,967 -
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34 CONSUMPTION OF RAW MATERIALS AND COMPONENTS

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2012 Year ended March 31, 2011

Quantity Amount (Rs.) Q uantity Am ount (Rs.)

CRGO lam ination 1,670,866 261,409,473 1,610,725 261,557,787

Copper 666,668 322,958,326 803,236 340,911,632

O il 1,679,494 108,138,027 1,778,346 90,117,011

MS items 1,157,968 92,218,354 1,147,065 83,351,725

Others - 293,624,802 - 210,854,730

Total 5,174,996 1,078,348,982 5,339,372 986,792,885

35 CONSUMPTION OF IMPORTED AND INDIGENOUS RAW MATERIALS AND STORES AND SPARES

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2012 Year ended March 31,2011

Amount Percentage Am ount Percentage

Imported 54,498,773 5% 139,169,832 14%

Indigenous 1,023,912,391 95% 847,763,420 86%

1,078,411,164 100% 986,933,252 100%

Raw materials 1,078,348,982 986,792,885

Stores and spares 62,182 140,367

1,078,411,164 - 986,933,252

Total 1,078,411,164 100% 986,933,252 100%

36 C.I.F VALUE OF IMPORTS
Particulars Year ended 

March 31,2012
Year ended 

M arch 31, 2011

Raw m aterial and stores and spares

Capital goods

Total

22,303,179 118,468,335

360,400

22,303,179 118,828,735

37 EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY (ON ACCRUAL BASIS)

Particulars Year ended 
March 31,2012

Year ended 
M arch 31, 2011

Service charges 264,915 182,897

Royalty 733,363 52,209

Travel 1,071,592 1,265,027

Loading and packing charges - 4,468,331

Total 2,069,870 5,968,464

38 EARNINGS IN FOREIGN CURRENCY (ON ACCRUAL BASIS)

Particulars Year ended 
March 31,2012

Year ended 
March 31, 2011

FOB value o f exports 

Total

93,353,795 108,751,895

93,353,795 108,751,895

39 SEGMENT REPORTING
The Com pany is engaged in to on ly  one business namely manufacture o f transformers and the operations p rim arily  cater 
to the needs o fth e  domestic market. Accord ing ly  there are no separate reportable segments according to AS 17 'Segment 
Reporting' issued under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006.
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40 DEFERRED TAXES
Particulars As at

March 31,2012
As at

March 31, 2011

Deferred tax assets

Carried forward tax losses* 78,809,096 67,037,066

78,809,096 67,037,066

Deferred tax liab ilities

Fixed assets 78,809,096 67,037,066

78,809,096 67,037,066

Net deferred tax liabilities - -

* Deferred tax asset towards carried forward tax losses has been restricted to the extent of deferred tax liabilities.

41 FINANCIAL AND DERIVATE INSTRUMENTS
a Derivative contracts entered in to  by the Com pany and outstanding as on year end;

Particulars As at
March 31, 2012

As at
M arch 31, 2011

Num ber o f contracts 
A m ount in USD 
INR equivalent

11
6,759,671

360,294,661

3
788,826

36,275,860

b The year end foreign currency exposures that have not been hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise are 
given below:

Description As at 
March 31, 2012

As at 
M arch 31, 2011

Foreign currency INR equivalent Foreign currency INR equivalent

A m oun t receivable  
USD

A m oun t payable  
USD

1,175,632

3,856,796

60,141,202

197,300,168 430,120 19,204,868

42 OUTSTANDING LEASE OBLIGATIONS

Finance lease oblisations
Particulars As at

March 31, 2012
As at

March 31, 2011

Future m in im um  lease payments 

No t later than one year

Later than one year and not later than five years 

Total

Less: Amounts representing future interest 

Present value o f m in im um  lease payments 

Less: Amounts due not later than one year 

Am ounts due not later than one year and not later than five years

1.472.846

1.472.846 
32,334

1.440.512
1.440.512

3,500,568

1,472,846

4,973,414

383,256

4,590,158

3,149,646

1,440,512

43 MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT ACT, 2006
Based on the inform ation received and available, the management believes that there are no enterprises w h ich  have 
provided goods and services to the Com pany and w h ich  qua lify  under the de fin ition  o f m icro  and small enterprises, as 
defined under M icro , Small and M edium  Enterprises Developm ent Act, 2006. Accordingly, the disclosure in respect o f the 
amounts payable, if any to such enterprises as at March 31, 2012 has been made in the financia l statements based on 
in form ation received and available w ith  the Company, to the extent identified by the management and relied upon by the 
auditors.
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44 RETIREMENT BENEFITS 

Gratuity Plan
Based on actuarial valuation necessary provision has been created in the books to  meet the liab ility  
Standard 15 (R).

The fo llow ing  table sets out the status o f the gratuity plan as required under AS 15 (Revised 2005) 
opening and closing balances o f the present value o f the defined benefit ob ligation.

as per Accounting 

. Reconciliation of

Change in projected benefit obligation Year ended 
March 31,2012

Year ended 
March 31, 2011

Projected benefit ob ligations at the beginning o fth e  year

Service cost

Interest cost

Benefits settled

Actuarial (gain) /  loss

Projected benefit obligations at the end of the year

9,091,678
1,820,746

872,994
(2,040,305)

1,644,274
11,389,387

6,868,341

990,008

549,467

(1,395,642)

2,079,504

9,091,678

Change in plan assets
Fair value o f plan assets at the beginning o f the year

Expected return on plan assets

Employer contribu tions

Benefits settled

Actuarial gain /  (loss)

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year

9,711,545
898,318

(2,040,305)

(63,938)
8,505,620

7,616,430

619,867

2,870,890

(1,395,642)

9,711,545

Reconciliation of present value of obligation on the fair value of plan assets
Present value o f projected benefits at the end o f the year 

Funded status o f the plan

Funded status amount of liability recognized in the balance sheet

11,389,387

8,505,620
2,883,767

9,091,678

9,711,545

(619,867)

The components of net gratuity costs are reflected below: 

Components of net gratuity costs
Service cost 

Interest cost

Expected returns on plan assets 

Recognized net actuarial (gain) /  loss 

Net gratuity costs

1,820,746
872,994

(898,318)

1,708,212
3,503,634

990,008

549,467

(619,867)

2,079,504

2,999,112

Financial Assumptions at Balance sheet date:
Discount rate

Long term rate o f com pensation increase 

Estimated rate o f return on plan assets 

A ttrition  rate

8.55%
7.00%

8.00%
1% -3 %

8.00%

6.00%

9.25%

1 % - 3 %

The Com pany assesses these assumptions w ith  the projected long-term plans of growth and prevalent industry standards. 

Note:
(i) Plan assets comprise o f con tribu tion  to G roup G ratuity Scheme o f Life Insurance Corporation o f India.
(ii) The gratu ity expenses have been recognised in 'C on tribu tion  to provident and other funds' under Schedule 25 to the 

notes.
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45 TRANSFER PRICING

The Com pany has international transactions w ith  related parties. For the financia l year 2010-11, the com pany has obtained 
the Accountant's Report from  a Chartered Accountant as required by the relevant provisions o f the Income Tax Act, 1961 
and has filed the same w ith  the tax authorities. For the financia l year 2011 -12, management confirm s that it maintains 
docum ents as prescribed by the Income-tax Act, 1961 to prove that these international transactions are at arm's length 
considering the econom ic scenario, prevailing market conditions etc and the aforesaid legislation w ill not have any 
im pact on the financia l statements, particu larly on the am ount o f tax expense and that o f provision for taxation.

46 MONIES HELD IN TRUST

M onies held in trust am ounting to INR 13,538,376, represents m oney transferred from  the Sellers' Escrow account 
(ex-promoters), on behalf o f Prolec GE. The said m oney was transferred, as the ho ld ing Com pany had no office in India, 
to do the docum entation to transfer the funds on the date o f settlement, to the ir account in M exico, as the Escrow Account 
was closed in Novem ber 2011. Subsequent to the balance sheet date, on A pril 25, 2012, the Company, through its 
authorized dealer, has made necessary application to RBI seeking approval to rem it this money to the hold ing Company.

47 RECEIVABLE FROM PROLEC GE INTERNACIONAL S. DE R.L. C.V., THE HOLDING COMPANY

Prolec GE had seconded some employees to the Company, w ho  are on the payroll o f the Company. Prolec GE has agreed 
to re-imburse costs perta in ing to salaries and other expenses o f these employees. For the current year Rs. 93,025,710 has 
been agreed to be re-imbursed by Prolec GE.

48 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

a) Names of related parties and nature of relationship are as follows:

Nature o f relationship Name o f the related party

U ltim ate ho ld ing com pany Xignux S.A. de C.V.

H o ld ing Com pany Prolec GE Internacional, S.de R.L. de C.V.

Fellow subsidiaries Prolec S.A. de C.V.

Key management personnel Mr. M anuel Hernandez Bravo, Manager
(w.e.f. December 1, 2010)

b) Details of related party transactions for the year ended March 31, 2012 (March 31, 2011)

Nature o f transaction U ltim ate ho ld ing 
com pany

H o ld ing
com pany

Fellow
subsidiary

Key
Management

personnel

Trademark license fees 6,373,540 - 6,373,540 -

(3,212,920) (-) (3,212,921) (-)

Re-imbursement o f expenses - 98,726,931 - -

.(-) (121,307) (-) (-)

Managerial remuneration - - - 2,341,540

(-) (-) (-) (781,804)

Sales
(-)

5,756,173
(-) (-1

Balances at year end
V / \  f

A m ount payable 9,586,460 5,123,983 9,586,461 -

(3,212,920) (2,921,537) (3,212,921) (-)
A m ount receivable

(-)

94,140,837

(-) (-) (-)

(figures in brackets represent previous year figures)
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49 In pursuance of Accounting Standard - 29 (AS-29), 'Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets', the provisions 
required have been incorporated in the books of accounts in the following manner;

Particulars A satM arch31,2012 As at M arch 31, 2011
Provision for 

warranty
Provision for 

others
Provision for 

warranty
Provision for 

others

Balance as at the beginning o f the year 

Add: Provision made 

Less: Provision reversed /  utilised 

Balance as at the end of the year

Classified as long-term 

Classified as short-term 

Total

8,916,513

5,249,866
1,863,528

12,302,851

6,500,179
5,802,672

9,300,428

3,973,636

5.326.792

5.326.792

4,905,000

5,336,810

1,325,297

8,916,513

7,052,985

1,863,528

9.300.428

9.300.428

9.300.428

12,302,851 5,326,792 8,916,513 9,300,428

50 PRIOR PERIOD COMPARATIVES

Prior year comparatives have been regrouped wherever necessary to  conform  to current year's classification.

fo r B S R and Co
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Zubin Shekary
Partner
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D irector
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Financial C ontro ller & Com pany Secretary

Chennai 
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INDO TECH TRANSFORMERS LIMITED
Registered O ffice : DP-36 SIDCO Industrial Estate, Thirum azhisai, Chennai - 6 0 2  107.

PROXY

No. o f Shares held :

DP ID  No. :
(if Dematerialised)

Regd. Folio No. :
(if not Dematerialised)

C lient ID  No. :

I/W e. . o f .

hereby a p p o in t.

. being a M em ber /  Members o f Indo Tech Transformers Limited,

. o f ________________________________________________________

___________________________________________ o r fa i lin g h im /h e r

o f .

. or fa iling  h im  /  h e r . of

____________________________________________________________________________________________________ as my /  our Proxy

to vote for me /  us and on m y/our behalf at the 20th Annual General M eeting o f the Com pany to be held on Friday, the 
10th August, 2012 at 4.00 p.m. at Pleasant Days (Resort), Chennai-Bangalore Trunk Road, Palanjur, Sembarambakkam, Chennai 
602 103, and at any adjournm ent thereof.

Signed th is . . day o f . 2012

Signature

Note: An instrument appointing a Proxy shall be deposited at the Registered O ffice  o f the Com pany not less than forty-eight 
hours before the tim e for ho ld ing the meeting. A proxy need not be a member o f the Company.

INDO TECH TRANSFORMERS LIMITED
Registered O ffice : DP-36 SIDCO Industrial Estate, Thirum azhisai, Chennai -  602 107.

ATTENDANCE SLIP-CUM -ENTRY PASS
(PLEASE FILL IN THE ATTENDANCE SLIP A N D  H A N D  IT OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF THE MEETING HALL)

Name and address of the Shareholder:.

Regd. Folio No. :
(it not Dematerialised)

C lient ID No. :

No. of Shares held :

DP ID No. :
(if Dematerialised)

I hereby record m y presence at the 20th Annual Ceneral M eeting o f the Company held on Friday, the 10th August, 2012 
at 4 .00 p.m. at Pleasant Days (Resort), Chennai-Bangalore Trunk Road, Palanjur, Sembarambakkam, Chennai 602 103.

* Strike out whichever is not applicable.
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Secretarial Department

DP:36 SIDCO Industrial Estate
Thirumazhisai
Chennai - 600 124


